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INTERIM REVIEW REPORT ON INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATİON

To the Board of Directors of Pasha Bank A.Ş.:

lntroduclion

We have reviewed the unconsolidated balance sheet of Pasha Bank A.Ş. (“the Bank”) at September 30, 2016 and
the related unconsolidated income statement, unconsolidated statement of income and expense items under
sharehoiders’ equity, unconsolidated statemen( of changes in shareholders’ equity, unconsolidated statcment of
cash flows and a summary of sinifıcant accounhing policies and otiıer explanatoıy notes to the unconsolidated
fınancial statements for the nine-month period then ended. The Bank Management is responsible for the
preparation and fairpresentation of interim flnancial statements in accordance with the “Regulation on Accounting
Applications for Banks and Safeguarding of Documents” published in the Offıcial Gazette no.26333 dated 1
November 2006, and other regulations on accounting records of Banks published by Banking Regulation and
Supervision Agency and circulars and interpretalions published by Banking Regulation and Supervision Auıhority,
(together referred as BRSA Accounting and Reponing Legislation) and Turkish Accounting Standard 34 “Interim
Financial Reponing” except for the matters regulated by BRSA Legisiation. Cur responsibilitv 15 to express a
conclusion on these interim financial statements based on our review.

Scope of Review

We conducted our review in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements (SRE) 2410, “Limited Review
of Interim Financial information Perfomıed by the independent Auditor of the Entity”. A review of interim
fınancial information consists of making inquiries. primarily of persons responsiNe for fınancial reporting process.
and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review of interim fınancial information is substantially
less in scope than an independenı audit performed in accordance with the lndependent Auditing Standards of
Turkey and the objective ofwhich is to express an opinion on the fınancial statements. Consequently, a review of
the interim fınancial information does not provide assumnce that the audit fırm viIl be aware of al! signifıcant
mallen which would have been identifted in an audit, Accordingiy, ve do not express an opinion.

Conclusion

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to beileve that the accompanying
unconsolidaled fınancial statements do not give a true view of the fınancial position of Pasha Bank A.Ş. at
September 30, 2016 and of the results of its operations and its cash flows for the nine monıh-period hen ended in
ali aspecıs in accordance with the BRSA Accounting and Financial Reponing Legislation.

Report on other regulaton requirements arising from legislation

Based on our review, nothing has come 10 cur attendon that causes ü5 10 beheve that the financial information
provided in the accompanying interim activity report in Section Vii. are not consistent with the unconsolidated
financial statements and disclosures in alI material respects.
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The fınancial sıatements of the Bank as of December 31,2015 and September 30, 2015 were audited and reviewed
by another independent audit fırm, who expressed an unqualifled opinion and concinsion in their audit and review
reports dated February 22, 2016 and November 9, 2015, respectively.

Additional paragraph for convenience translation ta English:

As explained in detail in Note 1 of Section Three, the efTects of diflerences between accounting principles and
standards set otu by regulations in conformity with BRSA Accounting and Reporting Legislation) and Turkish
Accounting Standard 34 ‘Interim Financial Repofling’ except for the matters regulated by BRSA Legislation.,
accounting principles generaliy accepted in countries in which the accompanying unconsolidated financial
statements are tube distributed and international Financial Reponing Standards (“IFRS”) have not been quantified
in the accompanying unconsolidated fınancial statements, Accordingly, the uccompanying unconsolidaled
fınancial statements are not intended to present the fınancial position. results ofoperations and changes in fınancial
position and cash flows in accordance with the accounting principles generaliy accepted in such countries and
IFRS.

Güney Bağımsız Denetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Müşavirlik Anonim Şirketi

Istanbul. Türkiye

Global Limited

October3l. 2016

A rnember Irm ot Ern!ı a Voung GIobI Limted



PASHA
Bank

THE NINE MONTH UNCONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCİAL REPORT OF
PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.Ş. AS OF 30 SEPTEMBER 2016

A.O.S. 55. Sokak No:2 42 Maslak Ofis 3 Kat:7
34398 Maslak Istanbul, Türkiye

705 89 00(0212)
(0212)3450712
www.pashabank.com.tr
infopashabank.com.tr

The unconsolidated nine-month financial report includes the following sections in accordance with the CommuniquĞ
on Financial Statemenis and Related Explanations and Notes that wili be Publicly Announced as sanctioned by the
Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency.

- GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUF THE BANK
- UNCONSOLIDATED IN]ERIM FINANCIAL SIKI EMENUS OF THE BANK

EXPLANAIIONS ON ACCOUNTING POLICIES
INFORMATION RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDAİED FINANCİAL POSITİON AND RİSK
MANAGEMENT
EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO U7ÇCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The accornpanying unconsolidated interim fınancial statements and notes to these financial statements which are
expressed. unless otherwise stated, in tİıousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”>. have been prepared and presented based
on the accounting books of the Bank in accordance with the Regulation on Accounting Applications for Banks and
Safeguarding of Documents. Turkish Accounting Standards, Turkish Financial Reporting Standards, and related
appendices and interpretations of these, and have been reviewed.

Contact information of the personnel in charge of the addressing of questions about this fınancial report:

Address of the Bank’s Headquarters

Telephone of the Bank
Fax of the Bank
Web site of the Bank
E-malI for correspondence
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Ali İhsan Tokkuzun

Deputy General ManagerGeneral Manager

Member of the Audit Committee

k’)

Yeşim Çağlar
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PASHA YATIRIM BANK A.Ş.
NOTES TO FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS
AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2016
(Amounıs are expressed in ıhousands of Turkish [in (“TL) unless orhenvise stated.)

SECTİON ONE

GENERAL INFORMATİON

Bank’s foundation date, start-tıp statute, historv about the changes in this mentioned statute:

Banks commercial title Pasha Yatırım Bankası A.Ş.
Reporting Period 1 January - 30 September 2016
Address of the Bank’s Headquarters A.O.S. 55. Sokak No:2 42 Maslak Ofis 3 Kat:7

34398 Maslak İstanbul, Türkiye
Telephone (0212)7058900
Fax (0212)3450112
Webs ile www.pashahank.com.tr
E-mail inroü>pashabank.conı.tr

PASHA Yatırım Bankası A.Ş. (“Bank”, “PASHA Bank”) has been permitted by the decree no. 87/11898
dated 17.06.1987 by the Council of Ministers pursuant to the Banking Law No. 3182 (repealed) and the
Bank has been established under the title of Yatırım Bank A.Ş. headquartered in Istanbul under the Foreign
Investment Promotion Law. The establishment of the Bank was permitted by the Ministıy of Industıy and
Trade on the date of2 1.12.1987, the Articles ofAssociation of the Bank was approved by the decision no.
1987/5087 dated 12.25.1987 ofthe 1 st Commercial Court of Istanbul, and it was registered with the Istanbul
Trade Registıy Offıce under the no. 240320 on the date of 25.12.1987 and published in the Turkish Trade
Registıy Gazette no. 1924 and dated 30 December 1987. Commencing its investment banking activities on
the date of 1 March 1988, the Bank has been operating as of3O September 2016 through its head offlce in
Istanbul only and has no branches.

İİ. Explanation about the Bank’s capital structure, shareholders of the Bank who are in charge of the
management and/or auditing of the Bank dircctly or indirectly, changes in these matters (if any)
and the group the Bank belongs to:

With the decision taken by TAIB Bank B.S.C. (c) - previons parent of the Bank- regarding the sale of its
shares in the Bank, a share purchase agreement was signed between the Aksoy Holding A.Ş. and previous
parent of the Bank on 13 May 2013. Upon the Banking Regulation and Supen’ision Agency (BRSA”)’s
approval dated 26 June 2013, Aksoy Holding A.Ş. acquired the 99.4689% of the shares of the Bank. With
the decision taken in the extraordinary general assembly meeting of the Bank dated 31 July 2013 and
numbered 32. share transfer tmnsaction has been approved. The share transfer from previous pareat of
the Bank to Aksoy Holding A.Ş. has been completed as at 2 August 2013.

In the extraordinary general assembiy meeting of the Bank dated 31 October 2013, it was decided to
increase the paid-in capital of the Bank to from TL 37,000 to TL 39.000. The paid-in capital of the Bank
was increased to 39.060 TL in accordance with the BRSA’s approval as al 13 November 2013. İn the
extraordinaıy general assembly meeting of the Bank dated 21 November 2013, it was decided 10 inerease
the paid-in capital of the Bank to from TL 39.000 1° TL 80,000. The paid-in capilal of the Bank was
increased 1080,000 TL in accordance wiih the BRSA’s approval as at 29 November 2013.

PASHA Bank OJSC and Aksoy Holding A.Ş. has agreed on transferring the majority shares of the Bank.
Acquisition ofTL 28,795,121 of the Bank’s capilal and increase in the paid-in capital from TL 80,000 to
TL 255.000 upon the Acquisition vere approved by the BRSA’s decision dated 26 December 2014. And
numbered 6137. The capital increase cash from TL 80,000 to TL 175,000 has been completed.
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PASHA YATIRIM BANK A.Ş.
NOTES TO FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS
AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2016
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL) unless othenvise stated.)

GENERAL P4FORMATION (Contioned)

IİI.

Paid-in capital increase from TL 175,000 to TL 255,000, approval of the share transfer and changing the
Bank’s title as “Pasha Yatırım Bankası A.Ş.” have been approved in the exira ordinaıy general assembly
of the Bank dated 27 Januaıy 2015.

The change of Bank’s title as “PashaYatırım Bankası A.Ş.” registered on 2 March 2015 and announced
on Turkish Trade Registry Gazette dated 6 March 2015 and numbered 8773.

Acquisition of remaining 5 1,000 shares of Aksoy Holding A.Ş. by PASHA Bank OJSC by inereasing
Pasha Bank OJSC shares from %79.9196 to %99.9196 has been approved by the BRSA’s resolution dated
23 December 2015 and numbered 18038.

As of 24 December 2015, the share transfer was accounted in the statutoıy accounting records with the
Board decision numbered 2015/110.

Partnership structure of the Bank as of 30 September 2016, is stated below:

Chairman of the Board of Directors (1)

Vice President of the Board of Directors(’>

Independent Member of the Board of Directors/
Member of the Audit Committee

lndependent Member of the Board of Directors/
Chairman of the Audit Comminee

Member of ıhe Board of Directors’
General Manager

Member of the Board of Directon

Member of the Board of Directors

Independent Member of the Board of Directors

Assiscant General Manager

Agha-Ali Kamalov

Jalal Gasımov

Necip Süreyya Serdengeçti

Mesut Özdinç

Hikmet Cenk Eynehan

Shahin Mammadov

Taleh Kazimov

Adnan Aykol

Ali Ihsan Tokkuzun

PhD

Postgraduate

Postgraduate

Postgraduate

Postgraduate

Postgraduate

Postgraduate

Graduate

Postraduate

(1) As of 30 March 2016 ,Agha Ali Kamalov is assigned as Chairman of the Board of Directors ,JalaI Gasimov is
assigned as Vice President of the Board of Directors with the Board decision numbered 2016/22

The shares of the above individuals in the Bank are insignifleant.

IName Surname/Commercial Title 1 —J
1 CapitaL
I?ASJ±ARkOTSC_____________________________ 2s4,s; %999196
ther 205: %0.080z4
trotal 255,000

Explanation on the Board of Directors, members of the audit committee, president and executive
vice presidents, changes in these matters (if any) and shares of the Bank they possess:

Shnre
Title Name Education rercentage

1
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PASHA YATIRIM BANK A.Ş.
NOTES TO FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2016
(Amounls are expressed in ıhousands of Turkish Lim (‘TL”) unless othenvise stated.)

GENERAL LNFORMATION (Conünued)

IV. Explanation on shareholden having control shares:

Explanation on shareholders having control shares of the Bank as of3O September 2016, is stated below;

Share
Amounts Share’ Paid-in Unpaid

LComms!!titIe

Ador Ltd. 76.439j %29.98 76.439
Arif’ Pashaycv 25.480] %9.99 25.480

V. Information on the Bank’s service type and fıeld of operations:

The Bank operates as an investment bank and as of 30 September 2016 the Bank has 36 employees
(31 December 2015: 31).

Vİ. Existing or Potential, Actual or Legal obstacles on Immediate Equity Transfer Behveen the Bank
and its subsidiaries or Repayment of the Deht:

N o ne,

3
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PASHA YATIRIM BANKASİ A.Ş.
UNCONSOLİDATED STATEMENT OF FİNANCİAL POSITİON
AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2016
(Amounls ute expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira C1L’) unless olhenvise sıaled.)

SECTION TWO

UNCONSOLİDATED FD4ANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. BALANCE SHEET (STATEMENT OF FINANCİAL POSITİON)

Cunentreriod Pılorreriad
ŞŞr!Ş___,__. 30 September 2016 31 December 2015

: (S,çtion
L____-__________ ,frfl. TL{ FC Tabi Tatil

1. CASHADBALANCESWİTIİCENTRALBANK (1) I,I!fl l7.053 l825j 788 11,815 12,663
Il. FINANÇIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUF TIIROUGII PROFIT

QŞSJ!J>._________________________________ . - -. - 6 - 604
2.1 Trudıng,FınanciaiAssets__________________________

- -l 604 604
2.1.1 Go’,mmenl ocbt Secunıtes - - - - - -

2.1.2 Shure Ceniİlçales — - - - -

...LLL Ji! Derivan.t Fınancin] Asscts - - 604 604
2.1,4 011w, Markeıablc Secunnes - - - - —

22 i nal? jediFFitr VlbüiÇPfiTSFLoss
2.2.1 Go,rmmenl Debt Secaınııes - - - -

2.2.2 Sbnre Cenıficaltı - — - - —

2.2.3 Loons
- - - -

2.2.4 Other Maıkcta6le Secıui6es - - - -

1it iXMĞ (3) 21 11.809 11,830 26.028 21,329 47,357
IV. MONEY MARKETS 10.503 10,503 -

‘4Y ]iüibFiEMoney Makel Placemenis - - - -

4.2 Receivables fiom Istanbul Slock Exchange Money Mwlcet 10,503 10,503 - -

U ğiŞabksftom Reverse R,jjjse Aeemenİs - - . - - -

V. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSEİ’S (Net (4) 12,230 12,230 9,619 9,619
5.1 S!iüFtiiifıcates

. - - -

5.2 tiiient’Ekbİ Securides 5,848 5,848 9.619 9.619
5.3 öiKiFkiüöVğecudties 6382 6,382
vi. LÖiN (5) 290,510 379,Ş I88i ŞŞ57 245.144
6.1 Loans 290,510 80,288 370,798 188,187 57,551 245,744
TiT Loans to Bık’s Risk Omup . 7.620 Ğz 8,082

6.1.2 OovemmcrnOütSccuüües - - -

Otbe 290,510 80.288 370,798 180.567 57095 237,662
6.2 Loaım mıde FoUow-up

. —_______

6.3 Specific Pmvisions {) -

Vii. FAp0RJNG RECEIVABLES - . . -

Wıl. HELD-TO-MAWmTY SECURITIES (Net) J) -

8.1 Govanmeat Dc Secmiües -
8.2 Oer MsıfraMe Secmities .

IX. INVESIMENTS İN ASSÖCIATES (Net) (7) - . - -

9.1 CsolidndBason EquilyMüod .
92 Unnsdued

.

92.1 Financial ftfl5flfl5j3 fl Assaeü’a .

92.2 Nosı-finıjü) inwsunena in Associates - - -

X. $UBSIDIARIES(NH) (8) - - - -
10.1 Unço’o1ited Füıandal Subiidisricı

-

10.2 Uncomoliüted Nos-Financial Subiidıanes -I - -

1(1. JOINT VENTURES (Net) (9) -

11.1 ConsoIidaedBadonEquilyMdhod
- -

11.2 Unconsolidated
. . —

11.2.1 Fınancıji ioınt Ventmts . . -

11.2.2 Non-financiüjoiıgVenlures - .

MI. LEASE RECEIVARLES (Net) (10) - —- - . . - -

12.1 Füıancial Lease Reccivables .

12.2 Opea*knal Lase Recdvablei -!
12.3 OUr

.

J2.4 Uncamed Income (-1 _..,

.

Mil. IIEDGING DERIVATIVE FINANCIALASSETS
- - -

13.1 FairVaIt Hed -

13.2 CashF1owHd -

—-—.

.J22_ jlnvesunenilledge
—

XIV. PROPERTYAND?QUII’MENT(,Ne3) (İZ) ,_,,,,J49, 569 503 504
XV

- (lif 610 61op ZZ 468
35.1 Goodwilr -ı
15.2 OIIwr 610 610 468 . 468
Mi. INYESTMENTPROPERTYjNeİJ (11)

- -

XVIL TAX ASSET 415 415 108 708
JnĞTi ‘ğı’ğrji 81
JP5S .,

(İŞ> 627
XVIII ASSETS HELD FOR RESALE AND DISCONTINUED

(İt>
......_,,:,_. .

18.1 HeldforResalc - . - . -

JT Dıscoıiiıed operaııdhr
,PİMŞJ’.AŞ.15 (17k J.LZ ,29.! . 37 4,738

‘‘ts W8 3o

• The aceompanying notes ute au integral part of these linancial statements.

4
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PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.Ş.
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCİAL POSITİON
AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2016
(Amourns are expressed in ıhousands of Turkish Lira (“TL) unlcss oli envise stated.)

1. STATEMENT OF FINANCİAL POSITİON (Continued)

J —.-------.-—--.I CurrentçefioL_,,’ Pdorpedod
_ PWJWJŞ -

JN0 30Srpzemeflj 3lDembşr20I5______
(Seyhan’

— —______

TL FC TaaL TL FC ToMI
J• SÇŞ!Ş__._________________ . .‘ . -

t Çpçıts of Bank’s Risk Craup . . . . -

1.2 Olker -] -l -[Il. TRADING DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LİABILITIES J) S2 -I 52 20 28 48
ili. BORROWINGS (3) 49.535 120,874 170,409 71311 71311
IV. .MONEV MARKETS 4.893 4,893 -
4.1 Funds ftom lnscrbankMonejarkct - .
4.2 Funds 6-on Istanbul Slock Exchange Money Market . . . - -
4.3 Fundsprovided Under Repurehasekreements 4,893 4,893
Y. MARKETABLESECURITIESISSUED(Net) J!L .

5.1 BilIs . -
5.2 MsehBackedSeturities — . -
5,3 Bonds . . . - -
Vi. FUNDS 444 1,240 1,684 49 10,223 10,272
6.1 Borower Fonda 444 1,240 1,684 49 10,223 10,272
6.2 Other . . . -
Vii. MISCELLANEOUS PAYABLES 21 21 100 100
Vili. İLIABILITIES Jfl__ 12.121 69 12,190 5,292 46 5338
IX. FACFORING PAYABLES - . . -
X. LEASE PAYABLES (Net) J!L - - -
10.1 Financial Lease Payables .
1W? Opemhonal Lease Payables - - .
10.3 Other - - .
10,4 Defentd Finwıcial Leasa Expensas (.) . . .
Xj_ IIEDGING DERIVATIVE FINANCİAL LIABILITIES J.!L - . . . -

1.1 Fair Valuc Hedge - . —
1.2 Caah I9ow Hedgt . . . -
1.3 Fatgn Net invesüncnt Hedge - . . . -

XII. PROVISİONS J!9I 5,427 5,427 4,302 4,32
12.1 General Loan Loss ftoüion 3.880 ‘ 3,880 2,670 2,670
12.2 Restmctuıing Ptaşüions . - . -
12.3 ReservefarEmployeeRigbls 313 - 313 299
12.1 InaurançeTechnical Prowsions (Net)

— - - - - -
12.5 Ojğpryjjoş.s ‘14 . 1233, .333 - 1,333
XIIL FAX LIABILITY (11) .._J! 1.538! 382 -İ 382
13.1 Cuntnt Tax Uability 1.538 l.538 482 -1 482
13.2 Dtfmed Tax Liabihıy - .
XIV. PAYABLES FOR ASSET HELD FOR RESALE AND

DISCONTINVED OPERATIONS J[2j, — . .

14.1 HeId for Resale - - . -:
13.2 Disontinued Opmlions - -
1_ fiPYP!IP!9ANS
,XVI. SHAREHOLDERS’EQUIfl’ 1 (14)1 230,619 240,619 230,Sflj_______

16.1 Paid-in Capital - 255.060 - 255000 255.0001 . — 255,000
16.2_QpyalReseneı - 201 - 20 (90) - -. (90)

-! -1 - -
16.2 2 ı Share Cancellatıon Profiİs -; — . -1
16.23 Marketable Securities Valurnion Resa-ve 20: - 20 (90) (96)
1624 ‘ Tanrib!e Mayıs ReIıution Resene - — — . -
1625 İntan1ubloAssctsRcvnluntıonResave .
162 investrnPropcrRdyakmtion Resen-e - - - - -
16 2.7 Bonus Sisares Ohtaaned fmm lnvestments in Associates.

Subsidiaries and mini Venlures — — — . — —

Jğ,J - - -
16.2,9 Value Dıllerences ofAsseis Held for Resale and Discontinued

,__

16.2.1
0 jhşCapI.___ -. . —. - ._..,..: — - -
16.3 Profıl Resyışes 324 - 324 324 - 324

—

- 29
16.3.2 Status Resents 295 - 295 295 - 295

,,
._:

16.3.4 Other Profli Reserves - - - - - -
JtL_. JftÇ!2Ik2!!L - ,,.z C25)

J1P£!isşspş!
16.4.2 Current Year Income/ (Loss) 9,957 - 9,957 8,787 - 8,787

TOTAL LIABILITIES 314,651> 122,183 436,833 24o:t9t ‘jf:Woğ 322.405

The aceompanying notes are an integral part of these linancial statements.
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATİON OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLIDATED HNANCIAL STATEMENTS ORİGINALLY ISSUED
İN TURMSH, SEE NOTE 1 OF SECTION THREE

PASHA YATIRİM BANKASİ A.Ş.
UNCONSOLIDATED OFF-BALANCE SHEET COMMİTMENTS
AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2016
(Amounls are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless oıhcnvisc stated,)

Il. OFF-BALANCE SHEET

j Curren: Period Prior Pedod
- r4oıe 30 September2ol6 3! DennWrZOlS

1 jStcdnn 1
FIve.IlI) 1 TL Tos1 total

‘jZ —

5a’ “İö,ıü ““iiiiTi ıjı,ols TiŞii7
T1RğANTtSiŞWRRANTWS <ıj ŞioT 10,714 149313 59,663 17,338 126,995
l Piiiofiüiıtce 44863 43364 59,665 43,829 104,494
- 1 1

“ - -

ifl_ Cımsmıtütıvcn fĞr rFdrtFöperot,oos
- 9.001 9,001 - 8,734 8,754

1 1 3 ‘öther (xItct5 orGü,nntcc 98,301 35,862 134,363 59,663 36,013 95,740
:n— ‘ - - - -

Ifl’- lmpLenerofAccepunca - - . -

1 22. Odıer eiiiEcp4snceı - - ‘ -

TT”'’ Letlen ofCredıt - 5,151 5.851 - 33,561 flJII
1fl” - 5.651 5,85! - 22,301 22,501
rnr ‘ö7£iieniYCW__________________________ -

1- inihciiijtpvtn as Gusnnıee - - -

rr— Fmn - - -

13.1. £Bonçrneııt,ıo dıe Cen.fflbTEB1iFTurkey . - -

i.nr ‘WtSWndnemeaıı - - ‘ - -

nr ç£!!!! Inuc Puıthase Guanntee. - .

rr 3’açtonntiiiihitei
-

“tE”’” ödıer Gu.nrnees - — — —

Tr öinn,______________________ - . -

‘IL” 1ÖMMİTMINTS 6 6 86,509 8,417 11.946
‘ur” TıiiüElFtinmımıenıs 6 6 10,309 8,437 18.946
,1Tr,,’ XütPl?iü’Ti1sommiunent, - . 8,475 8,437 16,912
flT” bjiliŞWğfiiWiiFSilütommrnnenıs - 2,009
‘Tfl. harWCiWt,1tiiüits 80 .Iiis8es and’SiiEiiianes - - ‘ -

‘!14, ‘tjjjjfünenjs for Loan Limit: - -

211. S{Rii1i’sıjcroi. e Commılmcnt, - - -: -Ir_ oremenı8 - . ‘ ‘ -

flT” commrnnn irthFques - - . . - —_____

“ıTr ‘ nd’TüidtihHıne, hom Eıpon Commrnneııı, 6 - 6 25
!.TT tiiiiiiWoTdtfCiWflmiu , . -

rrr WTitiBi Caü and Bnhn Şcrv,ce, , - -

TVW’ esWom!Eon1iEtmmıüiiiiiU.wkeıaNe Secuddes .

nır ŞNETöFShon Sıle Comm,nnen1iilMüeı,bk secunbes . , . -

!111 Other Irrevoça51tommıüna,ts - , -

21:” ‘1evoüIEZi,mmıonaııs . . . -

nır “Revocable Commjmıenc, for Loan Limit, - . -. -

T21 öthüRŞöiMFtomminnencs -

91£’” b!WVATlVEVINXNCtkElStUUMEtcıs (2) 6.852 6,788 13,562 35,957 35,25! - 11,216
Tl 1td5jvsilWEWiciiI losnumem: - . . , -

9T’ mnucnon, r Ftjr VaIuellae - . . -

ıTr’ ‘lŞiiiücaon, TdFt’PJöWlledac - , - -

rrr ‘Tmn,açtion, for ForeıAn Net hweıtment Hede - , .

TT Tü,ijeWüPmiüiiflıTmenu 6,852 6,710 13,362 35.957
-rır- -r-i Fıüic /Wö1i Tıwıacton, 6432 LrĞ 03,362 3,833 ‘3Ş3 ‘“7,Ş
TYIT’ Fctwmd Foreign Cımency Transaetoas’Boy 6,852 - 1 6,852 3,873 - 3,835
Tİ’ITr tn,e,nwos—sefl - 6,7101 6,710 - 3,794 3,794
TI’ Ss.,p Toanüçnon, Rtl,wd ıo Fortıı Cımey and lntn K -; 32,122 3,463 63a
TİF Foreig,, Cuntney Swap’Boy

‘ 32,122
-121’ Foşeiyncunencysw.ş’SdI , , . 31,463 31,465

121’ Inıae,ı RMe Swap-hıy
- fl InIantR,teSw.p’Sdl ‘ ‘ ‘ -

!.T Foreıp Ciorenoy, IMemt tut and Secmıne, Oşn, -

flT Pompıcwrencydşnorn
Tırr Poç,ıg,,Cm,encyopmeos- - ‘

TIJT’ Interesı Rattöpoons-Bu
Tur lniWk,te Opılons-Sel - ‘ -

TDY Semmda Opoons’Buy ‘1mr S,d.o.-%dı - ,,_ -

‘ITl Pe’mpcuntocyrumre, -1
‘ırr Fotein CuntıKy Fımra-
T1’ Portı Curreıwy rımıre3- - . -

‘121’’ Imae,ı Rıte Pınuts ‘ -

TnT’ intern! RMc Futum’Buy -

-rzrr inserni Rize Fucureı-ScU - ‘ ‘

rodıre - -______ - ‘ ‘ ‘ -

‘r’ı CuSmDVANDPLEDGESREZ£jvEn<w+v.vn 156,169 92,741 242.911 rJ68 913191 111,677
wr” 1TtMfl1tLbISZUtÖbV -____ 1,6% - 3.619 955 - 212“nr tiüomer Fw,rand PonM,o a1ii , -

wr 1üıı!Ifleld1irü6aj_______________________ - ‘ -ı’r “thTüeKTFtIkiiSn ——-j:;şö - 3,690 935 - 933
fl” -. ,ommeebüiWWÇTClFciion ‘ - . -

‘Tc” DıhWXnet, Rtiid Tor Coilecıion . .

4r
, ,_.,r .,,_ ‘ ‘ -‘Tl.
.—. -———---: -‘..—--——-: ‘ -r zü . . , -__

V. PLEDCES REC WEB . -— — 146,44 4 96,913 4.M!! 146,331
rr”’ “1!iZibIiSEiihnes ‘ ‘‘ — 45006 45006 “'“ 4377’ 43772
9’2” ‘‘“ ‘ iEi!O 8.034 “Tü3 ‘Ç’ Ç46 99,880
T To3itÇ’ ‘9 — 364 903
n waı ‘ ‘ ‘

T1ÇiTTitle - 06 “‘T1i’o
:! ttherPled5cdlıems ‘ — ‘ —._

.ır” Piedged ltemı-beposıtoıy — - -

‘W”— “XCCEPtEWİNDEPENDENTGLARANtgEs iNi) w iR İlAN “ 30 ‘‘ 39.337 39,367 “rü91 42,398
tÖtAL OFr-BALIJNCE Siittitf CO0lMI’fjiE4’I’S (A+B 2,5.528 150,165 4115,693 203,999 202,835 306434

The accompanying noles are an integral pan of these linancial statements.
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATİON OF PUBLİCLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLIDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED
İN TURIUSH, SEE NOTE 1 OF SECTION THREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.Ş.
UNCONSOLİDATED INCOME STATEMENT
AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2016
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) onless nthenvise stated.)

ili. STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

Curren: rcdod Prior PeHod Curren: Period Pdor Pedod
INCOME AND EXPENSE ITEMS Nole 1 January- 1 .Innırnıy - 1 iuIy - 1 JuIy -

(Secüno 30 Seplember 30 Sepıember 30 Seplember 30 Seplember
—-———.—. .11Y.J.Ü.___, 016

J!P!1J?Ç9!._..,..__

11) 6
1.1 Inlerest on Loans 23,733 10.877 8.266 5,177

,-—-____ 3 -—-,,.—-,-,

1.3 Inlerest Received from Banka 1.357 5.978 420 1.488
1.4 Inlerest_Receivedfros,ıMoııyMarketTransacIions —— —— 7 540 24 -

1.5 Inlcrest Received 6-on Markelable Securities Portfolio 1.243 376 147
1.5.1 j4jnFinancialMseIs

- -

1.5.2 Financial Assets nt Fair Vakit lbmugh Profit or Loss - - —. - -

1.5.3 Available-for.sale Financial Msets - 1,068 376 147
1.5.4 Held-to-matudly Inyesonenu

- - - -

1.6 Financial Lease Incone
- - - -

(.7 Other İnlerest Incone
- - -

İl. INTEREST EXPENSE (-1 (2) (3,57.9 <626) (1,436)
2.1 Interest on Dcp9stts <-)
2.2 Interest on Fund, Botwwed (-) (2.828J (342) (1.351) (1621
2.3 İwatst Expane on Moııey Ma,kd Tmnsac*ions (-) (475) (159) (77) (97)
2.4 Inaaest on SevwiIies Is,ued (-) - - -
2.5 Oth Inicrast Ezpcnses () (12) <271) (125) (8) (3)
ili. NET INTERESF INCOME (1 ÷ Il) 22.900 17,840 7,681 6,553
IV. NET FEES AND COMMISSIONS INCOME)EXP£NSE 894 135 323 105
4.1 FeesandCommissionsReccived 1,017 307 357 233
41.1 Nca-cashLoam 841 128 287 89
3.1 2 Otha (12) 176 179 70 143
4.2 Fea and Commissions Paid (-3 j (123) (172) (34) (lğŞ)
3.2.1 Non-shLowu(-)

- -

3 22 Otber(-) <12) ((23) (172) (34) (128)
,__

İ4İDEND INCOME (3) - - -
Vi TRADINGINCOME/( LOSS) (Net) (4) 1,521 681 624 688
kL_ 12sİ(Loss) on Setmilles (19) <460) (36) 4

2 Tmdin6Gainsİ(Losses)on Değvalive Financial lnstnıments 743 (1.908) (160) (1,606)
6 3 797 3,049 820 2,290
Vİİ OTİİER OPERATING INCOME (5) 79 58 (35)

....‘ 19 9!UMIEtiN£q!1 (İİI+IV+V+Vl+Vll) 25,394 18,714 8,593 — 7,346
rt PROVISİON FOR LDAN LOSSES AND OTHER

İCEİVABLES(j_____________________________ (6) (1419) (kPJ
X OWROPERATING_EXPENSES(-) (7) ((1127!) (3,803) (3,178)
. .. IN(LOSS) (VllI+IX+X) i2Şi3 8,214 4,423 3,437
MI EXCESS AMOUNT RECORDED AS INCOME AFTER

NİERGER - -
7<111 İNCOME/(LOSS) FROM İNVESFMENTS İN SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BASED ON EQUİTY METIJOD
- -

XI JjÇ9]E/(9SS)ONNETMONETARYPOSITION
- -

XV INCOME/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUİNG

OPERATİONS

(Xİ+.+XIV) 12.913 8.2 14 4,423 3,437
XVI, TAX PROVISİON FOR CONTINUING OflRATIONS (- (9) (2,956) (1,916) (1j191) (841)
16.1 CımtmTaxP,ovision (2,685) (1.127)
J6.2 DefaredTazPmision (271) (1,976) 36 (MI)

NET INCOMMLOSS) FROM CONTİNUING OPERATIONS
XVII Jy.XVI) (10) 9,957 6,238 3,332 2,596
XVIIİ INCOME EROM DİSCONTINUED OPERATIONS .______ - -

18.1 ]me 6-mm Non-Cunenl Asscts Heid for Resale
- -

18,2 Salt Income 6-am Associates. Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures
-

18.3 Otherbeome fromDLsconnnuedQmons
- -

7<17< EXPENSES FROM DISÇONTİNU£D OPERATİONS (.)
- -

19.1 Epjfr2,m Non-Cuncnl Asacıs HcldkrRe5aie
- - -

L4Wi!1!14291P’ Ventures
- -

(9 9 xpens!sfrum Dıscornrnuedüperaıions
——

— - -

7<7< INCOMEJ(LOSS) BEFORE TAX PROM DISCONTINUED
PW141!9!Wll!-7<!N) ._fll_ —: — -:

XXI IŞÇ9,N»ÇQ9fl’J.QNŞ±i
- . —________

l.,Çqg9ppyğion
— -. —

., L. ,Pr4!?,n£29n — - -

7<7<11. NET INCONIE/(LOSS) FR071 DISCONTINUED
%!‘MJ.9f’iŞLGiN:NN.O — ——

.,2:’ !J.L.. N T !.NC9?!,kLPSSJQV!.!± 3 2596
Eamings/(Loss) per share 0 0390 0.0235 0.0131 0.0102

The aceompanying notes are an integral paft of these linancial statements.
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATİON OF PUBLİCLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLİDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORİGINALLY ISSUED
İN TURIUSH, SEE NOTE t OF SECTION THREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.Ş.
UNCONSOLIDATED INCOME AND EXPENSE ITEMS ACCOUNTED İN EQUİTY AT
30 SEPTEMBER 2016
(Arnounts are expressed n thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless othenvise staled.)

IV. STATEMENT OF İNCOME AND EXPENSE ITEMS ACCOUNTED İN EQUITY

ADDİTİONS TO ThE MARKETABLE SECURITİES VALUATİON RESERVE FROM THE AVAİLABLE
1. FOR SALE FİNANCİAL ASSETS 137 (191)
İİ. REVALUATİON DİFFERENCES OFTANGİBLE ASSETS

.

IV. FOREİGN EXCİİANGE TRANSLATİON DİFFERENCES FOR FOREİGN CtTRRENCY TRANSACFİONS -

İNCOME/LOSS ON CASH FLOW İİEDGE DERİVATİVE FİNANCİAL ASSETS (Effeelive Pan of Fair

...

PROFİT/LOSS FROM FOREİGN İNVESTNİENT İIEDGE DERİVATİVE FİNANCİAL ASSETS (Effeetive
‘!_ PnzloffairveChanges>

.,
— -

vii. ]EFFEÜS OF CİIANGES İN ACCOUNTİNG POLİCY AND ERRORS - -

Y1!.L.joTJ.LLLNC9.’ ANP.. OggpJ,ç.g[fl {G 9 IL_........ — -

1X D EFERR KOT XON ÇN ŞS - . 38

,‘
.!2’ !.NCPM!LL .P UJLtD IIR ÇJ.1 N..gq YJIXfl±!!±. 9..____________________ IlO (153)

%1. !CURRENT PERİOD İNCOME/LOSS 9,957 6,238

!.
!t2 fportion of Cash Fiow rival ve Financ al Asseis Reclassifled and Ptesenled on İlie İncome Statemeni

Ponion of Foreign İnvestment Hedge Denvative Financial Assets Recİassifled and Presented on the İncome
1 İ .3 Statement . —

11.4 fotter 9,957 6,238
‘İİ. TOTAL İNCOME/LOSS RELATED TO THE CURRENT PERİOD (X+XI) 10,067 6,085

İNCOME AND EXPENSE İTENİS ACCOUNTED İN EOUİTY

Corrent Pedod

30 Sentember 2016

Prior Period

30 Sentemher 2015

The aceompanying notes are an integral part of thesc linancial statements.
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CONVENİENCE TRANSLATİON OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLİDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY İSSUED
İN TURKİSH, SEE NOTE İ OF SECTION THREE

PASHA YATİRIM BANKASI A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLİDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW
AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2016
(Amounts are expressed in thousnnds of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless othenvise stated.)

Vi. STATEMENT OF CASII FLOW

t

1.I

.1

.2

.3

.4

.5

.6

.7

.8

.9

.2

.2.1

.2.2

.2.3

.2.4

.2.5

.2.6

.2.7

.2.8

.2.9
1.2.10

1.

0.

CASII FLOWS FROM BANKING OPERATIONS

Operating Profıt Before Changes in Operatina Asset, and Liahilities

Interest Received
Interest Paid
Dividend Received
Feet and Commissions Received
Other Income
Colitelions from Previouslv Wdlten-otr Loans and Other Receivables
Pawnenls to Penonnel and Service Sunnliers
Taxes Paid
Other

Chanea in Opendne üseta and Liabilitle,

Net (Increaseyfleerease in Tmding Seeurities
Net (lncrease)/Dccrease in Fair Value Tbrough PtofıilLoss Financial Assets
Net (lncrease)IDccrense in Dut from Banka
Net (Increase)/Deerease in Laans
Net (IncreaseVDccrease in Olher Asseta
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Basık Denosil,
Net Increase/(Decmase) in Other Denosils
Net IncreasMDecrease) in Funds Bouowed
Net lnereaseJ(Decrease) in Payables
Net Increasw(Decrease) in Other Liabililies

Net Caah Provided I)om Bankina Opendons

(‘ASIl FLOWS FROM INVESTING Aa1vITIES

Nota (Secilon
Flve.VI)

(2)

(2)

(2)

Currenl Perlod

30 Sentember 2016

11.866

23,880
(1,909)

1,012
1376

(5.014)
(1.558)
(5.921)

(34.249)

(5,231)
(122,486)

4.199

97.434

(8.165)

(22,383)

Prlor reriod

30 Seotember 2015

5,0 15

13,157
(584)

332
(126)

(4.172)

<3.592)

<136,600)

370

(5,005)
(159,080)

2.597

25.814

(1.296)

(131,585)

Netcashprovided from / (!J1£qrJ!gSctIvIt1a (2,841) (6,071)

JL_ lnveshnents, Associates and Subsidiaries - -

2,2 Caslı Obtained (rum Disposal of Investments, Associates and Subsidiaıies

J,, Purchases of Property and Şguipment (215) ()
2.4 Disposais of Propeny and Equipment - -

JL.. Available-(br-Sale ._____________ (15,095) (6,983)
Cashoblained(mm Salt of lnvtstmenls Available-for-Sale 12.852 1,193

2.7 Cash Paid for Purehase of Investment Securities . -

2.8 Caslı Oblained (rum Salt of lnvestment Securities -

2.9 Other (383) (184)

C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACFIVITIES

ili. Net Caah ProvidedfromjcIn[Aclivities
. —-“,‘-—“.,—

174,580

3.1 Cash Oblained (som Fonda Boaowed and Securities Isaued . -

3.2 Cash Used for Repayment of Funds BoıTowed and Seeurıties Issued -

3.3 s4Çpğjaslmments - 175,000
3.4 DividendsPaid -

H Paymenis for Emanet Leases
,,

— (139)
3,6 Other______________

IV. on Canlı and Canlı Equivsdent, (2j 918

V. Net lncnsse4Decreaselin Cash ondCnsh Equivalen ş.( ±ll!t!.Y.> ,,,, ,,,

_(4,Ş7) —— 38,142

Vi. cashandCaıhEquivalentsattheBçginaing of the Period (1) ,,.A!,1Ş .___________

yIl. qf,e !!Qd Vü.!) ..., ,23 Ş6

The accompanying nnıes are an integral part of these fınancial statements.
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED
İN TURJUSH, SEE NOTE 1 OF SECTION THREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2016
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless othenvise stated.)

SECTION THREE

EXPLANATJONS ON ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

a. The unconsolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the “Regulation on
the Principles and Procedures Regarding Banks’ Accounting Applications and Safeguarding
of Documcnts”:

The unconsolidated financia statements are prepared within the scope of the “Regulation on Accounting
Applications for Banks and Safeguarding of Documents” related with Banking Act numbered 5411
published in the Offlciai Gazette no.26333 dated 1 November 2006 and in accordance with the
regulations. communiqus. interpretations and legisiations related to accounting and financial reporting
principles published by the Banking Regulation and Supenision Agency (“BRSA”). and in case wlıere a
specifıc regulation k not made by BRSA, “Turkish Accounting Standards” (“TAS’) and “Turkish
Financial Reporting Standards” (“TFRS’) and related appendices and interpretations put into effect by
Pubiic Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority (“POA”). The format and content of the
publiciy announced unconsolidated financial statements and notes to these statements have been prepared
in accordance with the “Communiqu on Publicly Announced Financiai Statemenıs, Explanations and
Notes to These Financial Statements” and “Communiqu On Disclosures About Risk Management To Be
Announced To Public By Banks”and amendments to this Communiqu. The Bank maintains its books in
Turkish Lira in accordance with the Banking Act. Turkish Commercial Code and Turkish Tax Legislation.

The unconsolidated fınancial statements have been prepared in TL, under the historical cost convention
except for the financial assets and iiabilities carried at fair vaiue.

The preparation of unconsolidated fınancial statements in conformiN with TAS requires the use ofcertain
critical accounting estimates by the Bank management to exercise itsjudgment on the assets and Iiabilities
of the balance sheet and contingent issues as of the balance sheet date. These estimates, vhich include the
fair value calculations of fınanciai instruments and impairments of financial assets are being reviewed
regulariy and, when necessaıy. suitable corrections are made and the effects of these corrections are
reflected 10 the income statement. Assumptions and estimates that are used in the preparation of the
accompanying t5nancia! statements are explained in the following related disclosures.

The amendments of TAS and TFRS. effectiveness date is 1 Januan’ 2016. have no material impact on the
Bank’s accounting policies, financial position and performance. The amendments of TAS and TFRS,
except TFRS 9 Financial lnstrumenıs (2011 Version) wiil have no impact on the accounting poiicies,
tinancial condition and pertbmıance of the Bank. The Bank assesses the impact of TFRS 9 Financial
lnstruments standard.
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CONVENİENCE TRANSLATİON OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLİDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS ORİGINALLY ISSUED
İN TURMSH, SEE NOTE İ OF SECTION THREE

PASHA YATIRİM BANKASI A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS
AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2016
(Amounts are exprcssed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless oıhenvise stated.)

EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTW4G POLİCIES (Continued)

b. The accounting policies and valuation principles applied in the preparation of these fınancial
statements and valuatiou principles:

The accounting policies and valuation principles applied in the preparation of unconsolidated financial
statements, are determined and applied in accordance with regulations, communiquds, explanations and
circulars on accounting and financial reporting principles published by the BRSA, and in case where there
is no special regulation made by the BRSA. in accordance with principles in the context of TAS and
TFRS, are consistent with the accounting policies applied in the annual financial statements of the year
ended 31 December 2015. Aforementioned accounting policies and valuation principles are explained in
be Iow.

e. Explanation for eonvenience translation into English:

The effects of differences between accounting principles and standards set out by regulations in
conformity with BRSA Accounting and Reporting Legislation) and Turkish Accounting Standard 34
“Interim Financial Reporting” except for the matters regulated by BRSA Legislation., accounting
principles generaliy accepted in countries in which the accompanying unconsolidated fınancial statements
are to be distributed and international Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) have not been quantifıed
in the accompanying unconsolidated fınancial statements. Accordingly, the accompanying
unconsolidated financial statements are not intended to present the fınancial position, results of operations
and changes in fınancial position and cash flows in aceordance with the accounting principles generaliy
accepted in such countries and IFRS.

İİ. EXPLANATIONS ON STRATEGY OF USP{G FİNANCIAL LNSTRUMENTS AND FOREİGN
CURRENCY TRANSACTİONS

The general strategy of the Bank of using fınancial instruments is to sustain an optimal balance between
the yield of the instruments and ıheir risks. The most important ftınding source of the Bank is intemal
funding, in addition extemal funding including funding from repo transactions and borrowing from
foreign financial insritutions is utilised. Funds obtained from internal and extemal sources are invested in
high yield and quality fınancial assets and curreney. interest rate and Iiquidity risks are being kept within
the Iimits following the asset-liability management stntegv. The curencv. interest and Iiquidity risks of
on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet assets and liabilities are managed in accordance with the risk limits
accepted by the Bank and the related legal limits. Derivative instruments are mainiy utiiised for Jiquidity
needs and for mitigating currency and interest rate risks. The position of the Bank asa result of foreign
currency activities being held at minimum Ievels and the exposed curency risk is followed within the
determined leveis by the Board of Directors by considering the limits giyen by the Banking Law.

Foreign currency denominated monetaıy assets and Iiabilities are translated with the Bank’s foreign
currency bid rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Gains and losses arising from such valuations are
recognised in the income statement under the account of “Foreign exchange gains or losses”.
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CONVENİENCE TRANSLATİON OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLIDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS ORIGİNALLY ISSUED
İN TURİUSH, SEE NOTE 1 OF SECTION THREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLİDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS
AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2016
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless othenvise stated.)

EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

111. EXPLANATIONS ON FORWARD TRANSACTIONS, OPTİONS AND DERIVATIVE
INSTRUMENTS

The Bank does not have any embedded derivative instruments.

Derivative instruments are ciassifled either as “Hedging Derivative Financial Instruments” or “Trading
Derivative Financial Instruments” in accordance with the “Turkish Accounting Standard for Financial
instruments: Recognition and Measurement (“TAS 39”)”. Certain derivative transactions, even though
they provide effective economic hedges under the Bank’s risk management position. do not quaIilı for
hedge accounting under the specific rules in TAS 39 and are therefore treated as “Financial assets nt fair
value through profit or Ioss”.

Derivative instruments are measured at fair value on initial recognition and subsequently remeasured at
their fair values. If the fair value of derivative financial instruments k positive, it k dkclosed under the
main account “Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” in “Tmding derivative Fınancial
instruments” and ifthe fair value ditference 15 negative. it is disclosed under”Tmding derivacive fınancial
Iiabilities”. The fair values of the derivative financial instruments m-e calculated by using quoted market
prices or by using discounted cash flow modeis. Liabilities and receivables arising from the derivative
instruments are followed in the off-balance sheet accounts from their contractual values.

IV. EXPLANATIONS ON INTEREST INCOME AND EXPENSE

Interest income and expenses are recognised in the income statement on an accrual basis. The Bank ceases
accruing interest income on non-performing Ioans and, any interest income accruals from such Ioans are
being reversed and no income k accounted until the collection is made. Oniy cash collections regarding
non-performing loans are recorded as interest income.

V. EXPLANATIONS ON FEE AND COMMISSİON INCOME AND EXPENSE

Ali fees and commissions income/expenses are recognised on an accrual bask. except for certain
commission income and fees from various banking services which m-e recorded as income at the time of
collection.

Fees and commissions expenses paid to the other insiitutions regarding fınancial liabiliıies are considered
a component of interest expense of the related funding and are recognised as transaction costs and
recorded as expense in the statement of profıt and loss.

Contract-based fees or fees received in retum for services such as the purehase and sale of assets on behalf
ofa third or legal person are recognised as income at the time ofcollection.
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CONVENİENCE TRANSLATION OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS ORİGİNALLY İSSUED
İN TURIUSH, SEE NOTE İ OF SECTİON THREE

PASHA YATİRIM BANKASI A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLİDATED FİNANCIAL STATEMENTS
AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2016
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless othenvise stated.)

EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Vİ. EXPLANATİONS ON FINANCİAL ASSETS

The Bank ciassifles and accounts its financial assets as “Fair value through profit or Ioss”, “Available
for-sale”, “Loans and receivables” or “Held-to-maturity”. Saies and purchases of the fınancial assets
mentioned above are recognised at the “settiement dates”. The appropriate ciassifıcation of fınanciai
assets of the Bank is determined at the time of purchase by the Bank management, taking into
consideration the purpose of holding the investment.

a. Financial assets at fair value through profit or ioss:

Financial assets are ciassifled either as “Financial assets at fair vaine through profit or loss” or
“Trading fınancial assets”.

Trading fınanciai assets are either acquired for generating profıt from short-term fluctuations in the
price or dealer’s margin, or are the fınanciai assets inciuded in a portfoiio in which a pattem ofshort
term profit making exists independent from the acquisition purpose.

Saies and purchases of trading fınanciai assets are recognised at the “settiement dates”. Trading
fınancial assets are initialiy recognised at fair value plus transactions costs and are subsequently
re-measured at their fair value. Ali gains and losses arising from these evaluations are recognised in
the income statement. interest eamed whiie holding flnanciai assets is reported as interest income
and dividends received are inciuded separateiy in dividend income.

Derivative financial instruments are treated as trading fınancial assets unless they are not designated
as hedge instruments. The principles regarding the accounting of derivative financial instruments are
explained in detail in related section.

b. Available-for-sale financiat assets:

Available-for-sale financial assets are defıned as financial assets other than the ones ciassifled as
“Loans and receivables”, “Heid-to-maturity assets” or “Financial asset at fair vaiue through profıt or
loss”.

Govemment bonds inciuded in the available-for-sale tinancial assets are subsequentiy re-measured
at fair vaiue. “Unrealised gains and losses” arising from changes in the fair vaiue of financial assets
ciassifled as available-for-sale are recognised in the shareholders’ equity as “Marketable Securities
Valuation Reserve”, until there is a permanent deciine in the fair values of such assets or they are
disposed of. When these financial assets are disposed ofor impaired, the related fair value differences
accumulated in the shareholders’ equity are transferred to the income statement.

Available-for-sale equity securities that have a quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair values can be reiiably measured are carried at fair vaiue. Available-for-sale equity securities that
do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair vaiues cannot be rehabiy
measured are carried at cost. less provision for impairment.
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF PUBLİCLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLİDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED
İN TURMSH, SEE NOTE t OF SECTİON THREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS
AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2016
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless othenyise stated.)

EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTING POLİCİES (Continued)

e. Loans and receivables:

Loans and receivables are financial assets which are created by providing money, services or goods
ton debtor. Loans and receivables originated by the Bank are carried initialiy at cost and subsequently
recognised at the amortised cost value calculated using the effective interest method. The expenses
incuned for the assets received as collateral are not considered as transaction costs and are recognised
in the expense accounts.

The Bank provides general and specific provisions based on the assessments and estimates of the
management, by considering the “Communiqud Related to Principles and Procedures on Determining
the Qualiflcations of Banks’ Loans and Other Receivables aıd the Provision for These Loans and
Other Receivables” published in the Oftkial Gazene No. 26333 dated 1 November 2006. Apart froın
specific provisions, the Bank has general ban boss provision within the scope of the stated
regulations.

Vİİ. EXPLANATİONS ON İMPAİRMENT OF FİNANCİAL ASSETS

The Bank assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence ıhat a financial asset or
a group of fınancial assets is impaired. Where the estimated recovemble amount of the fınancial asset.
being the present value of the expected future cash flows discounted based on the efTective interest
method. or the fair value ifone exists is lower than its canying value, then it is concluded that the asset
under consideration is impaired. A provision is made for the diminution in value of the impaired fınancial
asset and it is charged against the income for the year.

YIlI. EXPLANATİONS ON OFFSETTING FİNANCIAL ASSETS

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet when the
Bank has a legabiy enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
collecüpay related fınancial assets and Iiabilities ona net basis, or to realise the asset and senle the liability
si mu ltaneously.

IX. EXPLANATİONS ON SALES AND REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS AND SECURITIES
LENDING TRANSACTIONS

Securities subject to repurclıase agreeınents (“Repo”) are classifıed as “Financial assets at fair value
through profıt or loss”, “Available-for-sale” and “Held-to-maturity” according to the investment purposes
of the Bank and measured according to the portfolio to which they bebong. Funds obtained from
repurchase agreements are accounted under “Funds Provided under Repurchase Agreernents” in liabilities
and the difference between the sale and repurclıase price is accrued over the life of repurchase agreements
using dıe effective interest method.

Funds giyen against securities purchased under agreements (“Reverse repo”) to reseli are accounted under
“Receivables from Reverse Repurchase Agreements” on the balance sheet. The difference between the
purchase and determined resebi price is accrued over the life of repurchase agreements using the “effective
interest method”.
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATİON OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS ORİGINALLY ISSUED
İN TURMSH, SEE NOTE İ OF SECTİON THREE

PASHA YATIRİM BANKASİ A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2016
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turki5h Lira (“TL”) unless othenvise stated.)

EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTING POLİCIES (Continued)

X. EXPLANATIONS ON ASSETS HELD FOR RESALE AND FİXED ASSETS FROM
DİSCONTINUED OPERATİONS AND LIABILITİES RELATED WITH THESE ASSETS

According to TFRS 5. non-current asset classifled as held for sale (or group of assets to be disposed) is
measured by the Iowest of book value or sales costs discounted fair value. An asset to be heid for sale
asset (or group of assets to be disposed) it is necessary tlıat, the related asset has to be commoniy seen on
the sales ofıhese kind of sales assets, it could be easily immediateiy sold in the frame of usual conditions
and it has to have high sales probability. For the high sales probability, there has to be a plan regarding
the sales of asset made by the appropriate management level and by the determination of buyers there has
to be an active program started regarding to completion of the plan.

Assets heid-for-resale consist of tangible assets that vere acquired due to non-performing receivables.
and are accounted in the ünancial statements in accordance with the “Communiqu Regarding the
Principles and Pmcedures for the Disposals of Immovable and Commodities Acquired due to Receivables
and for Trading of Precious Metal” published in the Oft5cial Gazette dated
1 November 2006. No. 26333.

A discontinued opemcion Isa part ciassifled as discarded or held for sales by the bank. Results regarding
to discontinue opemcions are presented individually in income statement.

The Bank has no discontinued operations.

XI. EXPLANATIONS ON GOODWİLL AND OTHER İNTANGİBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets are measured at cost on initial recognition and any directly anributable costs of setting
the asset to work for its intended use are included in the initial measurement. Subsequently, intangible
asseis are carried at historical costs after the deduction of accumulated amortization and the provision for
value decreases, ifany.

Intangibles are amortised over their estimated useful lives of three to five years using the straight-line
method. The useful life of the asset is determined by assessing the expected useful life of the asset,
technical, technological and other kinds of obsolescence and alI required maintenance expenses necessary
to utilise the economic benetit of the assets.

The Bank expects no change with respect to accounting estimates, amortization period. amortization
method, or residual value that wilI have signiflcant impact on the current or the following periods.

Compııter software development expenses that add to the economic beneFıt and extend the useful life of
the sofhvare are capitahised. These expenses are amortised over the remaining useful life of the related
intangible asset using he straight-hine metlıod”.
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATİON OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLIDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS ORİGİNALLY ISSUED
İN TURMSH, SEE NOTE 1 OF SECTION THREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED FİNANCIAL STATEMENTS
AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2016
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unlcss othenvise stated.)

EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

XI1. EXPLANATİONS ON PROPERTY AND EQUWMENT

Property and equipment is measured at its cost when initialiy recoanised and any directly auributable
costs of setting the asset in working order for its intended use are included in the initial measurement.
Subsequently, property and equipment are carried at cost Iess accumulated depreciation and provision for
value decrease. if any. Depreciation k calculated over the cost of property and equipment using the
straight-Iine method. The depreciation rates are stated below:

Offlce machine. furniture. Ieasehold improvements and vehicles 3-10 years

The depreciation eharge for items remaining in property and equipment for less Ibm an accounting period
at the balance sheet date is calculated in proportion to the period the hem remained in property and
equipment.

Where the canying amount of an asset is greater Ihan lis estimated recoverabIe amount”, it is ısriilen
down immediateiy to its “recoverable amount” and the provision for the diminution in value is charged
to the income statement.

Property and equipment are not subject to valuation such that fair value is presented in the fınancial
statements.

Gains and losses on the disposal of property and equipment are determined by deducting the net book
value of the property and equipment from its sales revenue.

Expenditures for the regular repair and maintenance of property and equipment are recognised as expense.
The capital expenditures made in order to increase the capacity of the tangible asset or to inerease its
future benetits are capitalised on the cost of the tangible asset. The capital expenditures include the cost
components which are used either to increase the useful life or the capacity of the asset, or the quality of
the product or to decrease the costs.

There is no pledge, mortgage or commitment on the Bank’s property and equipments.

The Bank expects no change with respect to accounting estimates that have signiflcant impact on the
current period or may have signiflcant impact on the following periods.

XIİI. EXPLANATIONS ON LEAS[NG TRANSACTIONS

Assets acquired under fınance Jease agreemenıs are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the “Iower
of the fair value of the leased asset or the present value of the amount ofcash consideration giyen for the
leased asset”. Leased assets are included in the property and equipment and depreciation is charged on a
straight-Iine basis over the useful life ofthese assets. Ifthere is any diminution in value of the leased asset,
a “Provision for value decrease” is recognised. Liabilities arising from the leasing transactions are
ineluded in “Financial Lease Payables” on the balance sheet. Interest and foreign exchange expenses
regarding lease transactions are charged to the income statement.

Operating Lease

Leases, in which the majoriıy of risk and retum ofpropeny beiongs ir lessor. are ciassifıed as operaiionai
lease. Payments that are made under operational leases, are accounted in income statements on a straight
line basis during the lease period.
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATİON OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLİDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY İSSUED
İN TURIUSH, SEE NOTE 1 OF SECTION THREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLİDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2016
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless othenvise stated.)

EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTİNG POLİCIES (Continued)

XIV. EXPLANATİONS ON PROVISİONS AND CONTINGENT COMMITMENTS

Provisions and contingent Iiabilities except for the financial instruments within the scope of the TAS 39
or the provisions recognised in aceordance with the TAS 12 and TAS 19 are accounted in accordance
with the “Turkish Accounting Standard for Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Asseis”
(“TAS 37”).

Provisions are recognised when the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation asa result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic beneflts wili be required to settle
the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation caı be made. The provision for
contingent Iiabilities arising from past events should be recognised in the same period of occurrence in
accordance with the “Matching principle’. When the amount of the obligation cannot be estimated and
there is no possibility of an outflow of resources from the Bank, it is considered that a “Contingent”
Iiability exists and it 15 disclosed in the related notes to the financial statements.

XV. EXPLANATİONS ON OBLIGATİONS RELATED TO EMPLOYEE RIGHTS

Obligations related to employee tennination and vacation dghts are accounted for in accordance with
“Turkish Accounting Standard for Employee Rights” (“TAS 19”) and are classifıed under “Reserve for
Employee Rights” account in the balance sheet. Under the Turkish Labour Law, the Bank is required to
pay a specifıc amount to the employees who have retired or whose employment is terminated other than
the reasons specifıed in the Turkish Labour Law. The reserve for employment termination benefıts
represents the present value of the estimated total reserve for the future probable obligation of the Bank
arising from this Iiability.

According to TAS 19 that 15 revised by Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority
with the Communique published in Ofticial Gazefte on 12 Mareh 2013 numbered 28585, in the calculation
of the employment termination benefıt Iiabilities of the Bank. the recognition option of the actuarial gains
and losses derived from the changes in actuarial assumptions or the differences behveen actuarial
assumptions and realizations in the income statement has been eliminated which is eftective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. The earlier application of the revision is permined in the
section of the transition and effective date of the standard and therefore the Bank has recognised the
actuarial gains and losses ıhat occur in related repoding periods in the Statement of Income and Expense
Iterns Accounted in Equity” and represented in the Prior Periods’ Incomei (Loss) hem in the Shareholders
Equity secrion.
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EXPLANATİONS ON ACCOUNTING POLİCIES (Continued)

XVI. EXPLAI{ATİONS ON TAXATİON

a. Current Tax:

Many clauses of Corporate Tax Law 14o. 5520 (“Tax Law”) which are valid starting from
1 Januaıy 2006, ‘vere taken into effect after being published in the Offlcial Gazette dated
2! September 2006 No. 26205. According to the Tax Law, the corporate tax rate in Turkey is payable
at the rate of 20% since 1 Januaıy 2006. The corporate tax rate is calculated on the total income of
the Bank after adjusting for certain disallowabie expenses, exempt income (such as capital gains
derived from the sale of equitv investments) and other allowances. No further tax is payable un!ess
the profit is distributed.

Dividends paid to non-resident corporations. which have a place ofbusiness in Turkey or to resident
corporations are not subject to withholding tax. Othenvise, dividends paid are subject to withhoiding
tax at the rate of 15%. An increase in capita) via issuing bonus shares is not considered a protit
distribution and thus does not incur withholding tax.

Corporations are required to pay advance corporate tax quarterly at a rate of 20% on their corporate
income. Advance fax is deciared by the l4th and paid by the l7th day of the second monıh following
each calendar quarter end. Advance tax paid by corporations which is for the current period is
eredited against the annual corporation tax calculated on their annual corporate income in the
following year. Despite the offset, if there is temporaıy prepaid tax remaining, this balance can be
refundçd or used to ofYset any other financial iiabiiities to the government.

A 75% portion of the capital gains derived from the sale of equity investments and immovable
properties heid for at least Pvo years is tax exempt, if such gains are added to paid-in capital or heid
in a special account under shareholder’s equity for five years.

Under the Turkish Corporate Tax Law, losses can be carried forward to offset against future taxable
income for up to fıve years. Losses cannot be carried back to offset proflts from previous periods.

in Turkey, there is no procedure for a fınal and definitive agreement on tax assessments. Tax retums
are required to be fluied and delivered to the related fax oftice until the evening of the 25th of the
foudh month foilowing the balance sheet date. Tax retums are open for t5ve years from the beginning
of the year foilowing the date of f5Jing during which period the tax auıhorities have the right to audit
tax retuns, and the related accounting records on which thev are based. and may issue re-assessments
based on Iheir fındings.

k Deferred Tax:

The Bank caiculates and accounts for defered income taxes for ali temporaıy differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and habilities and their carıying amounts in these financial statements
in accordance with Turkish Accounting Standard for income Taxes” (“TAS 12”). in the deferred
ta.x calculation. the enacted tax rate, in accordance with the tax legislation. is used as of the balance
slıeet date.

Deferred tax habihties are recognized for alI resulting temporaıy differences whereas deferred tax
assets resulting from ıemporarv differences are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit wilI be available against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.

The calculated deferred tax asset and deferred fax liability are presented as net in these financial
statements.
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EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTING POLICİES (Continued)

c. Transfer Pricing:

The articie 13 of the Corporate Tax Law describes the issue of transfer pricing under the title
oP’Disguised profit distribution” by vay of transfer pricing. “The General Communiqu on
DisguisedProfit Distribution by Way of Transfer Pricing” explains the appiication related issues on
this matter.

According to this Communiqu The Bank is required to fili out Transfer Pricing form, if the taxpayers
conduct transactions like purehase and sale of goods or services with the related parties as weli as
the methodology of the transfer pricing.

XVIİ. EXPLANATIONS ON BORROWINGS

Trading and derivative financial liabihties are vaiued with their fair vaiues and the other financial
iiabiiities are carried at “amortised cost” using the effective interest method.

The Bank utilises various hedging techniques to minimise the currency, interest rate and liquidity risks of
its financial iiabilities.

XVIİİ. EXPLANATIONS ON ISSUANCE OF SHARES CERTİFİCATES

Transaction costs regarding the issuance of share certificates are accounted under shareholders’ equity
after ehminating the tax effects. Dividend payments are determined by the General Assembiy of Bank.

The Bank has not issued any share cedificates.

No dividend payments were announced after the balance sheet date.

XİX. EXPLANATIONS ON AVALIZED DRAFTS AND ACCEPTANCES

Avalized drafts and acceptances shown as iiabihties against assets are inciuded in the “Off-balance sheet
commitments”. The Bank has no avalized drafts and acceptances shown as habihties against assets.

XX. EXPLANATIONS ON GOVERNMENT GRANTS

As of 30 September 2016 and 31 December 2015, the Bank has no governrnent grants.

XXI. EXPLANATIONS ON PROFIT RESERVES AND PROFIT DISTRIBUTION

Retained earnings as per the statutory financial statements other than legal resen’es are available for
distribution, subject to the legal reserve requirement referred to below. Under the Turkish Commerciai
Code (“TCC”) the legal reserves are composed of first and second resen’es. The TCC requires first
reserves to be 5% of the profit until the total reserve is equal to 20% of issued and fuliy paid-in share
capital. Second reserves are required to be 10% of alI cash profit distributions that are in excess of 5% of
the issued and fuHy paid-in share capital. However holding companies are exempt from this application.
According to the Turkish Commercial Code, legal reserves can oniy be used to compensate accumulated
losses and cannot be used for other purposes unless they exceed 50% ofpaid-in capital.
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EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTING POLICİES (Continued)

XXII. EXPLANATIONS ON EARNINGS PER SHARE

Eamings per share are calculated by dividing net profıt for the year to the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the period concemed. Earnings per share disclosed in the income statement are
calculated by dividing net profıt for the year to the weighted average capital outstanding during the period
concemed.

in Turkey, cornpanies can increase their share capital by making a pro-rata distribution of shares (“bonus
shares”) to existing shareholders from retained earnings. For the purpose of earnings per share
computations. the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year has been adjusted in
respect to bonus shares issued without a corresponding change in resources by giving thern a retroactive
effect for the year in which they were issued and for each earlier period. Where the nıımber of outstanding
shares increase due to distribution of bonus shares after the balance sheet date but before the release of
the financial statements, eamings per share cornputations are performed based on the revised average
number of shares.

XMII. EXPLANATIONS ON RELATED PARTIES

Partles defıned in Article 49 of the Banking Law No.541 1, Bank’s senior management and Board
Members are deerned as related parties. Transactions regarding related parties are presented in Section
Five.

XXIV. EXPLANATIONS ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purposes of the preparation of statement of cash flows, “Cash” includes cash, effectives, and cash
in transit, purchased cheques and demand deposits including balances with the Central Bank; and “Cash
equivalents” include interbank money market placements and time deposits at hanks with original
rnaturity periods of Iess than three months.

XXV. EXPLANATIONS ON SEGMENT REPORTING

information on operational flelds which are determined in accordance with the Bank’s organisational and
internal reporting structure and the requirements of “Turkish Accounting Standards on Segrnent
Reporting” (“TAS 8”) is disciosed in Section Four.

XXVI. RECLASSIFICATIONS

in order to be consistent with the presentation of current period financial staternents, there are certain
reciassifications made on staternent of incorne and expense iterns accoıınted in equity table dated 30
September 2015. in addition the Bank has reclassifıed TL 184 purchases of intangibes under ‘other’ iine
of “Net Cash Provided From / (Paid For) lnvesting Activities” section which was previously reported
under ‘purchases of property and equiprnent’ line in the cash flow statement dated 30 September 2015.

XXVII.EXPLANATIONS ON OTHER MATTERS

None.
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SECTİON FOUR

INFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL POSITİON AND RİSK
MANAGEMENT

1. INFORMATION ABOUT SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY İTEMS

Equity Capital amount and capital adequacy standard ratio is calculated in accordance with the “Regulation on
Measurement and Assessment of Capital Adequacy Ratios of Banks” and “Regulation on Equities of Banks”.

The current period equity amount of the Bank is TL 243,868 while its capital adequacy standard ratio is 59.60% as
of30 September 2016. Calculations of3 1 December 2015 have been made in the framework of repealed regulations
and equity amount is TL 232,480 while the capital adequacy standard ratio is 91.75%. The capital adequacy ratio
of the Bank is far beyond the minimum rate determined by the related legislation.

Am o un ts

Subject to

Pre-Basel

Current ili

Period 30 treatmen

September Before thı

2016 1/1/2014 (*

COMMON EQUITY TIER 1 CAPITAL

Paid-up Capital 255.000

Share issue premiums

Retained eamings 324

\ccumulated other comprehensive income and other disclosed reserves which detined in the Turkislı Accounting

Standards 20

Protit

Net protit of the period 9.957

Protit of the previous years

Shares acquired free of eharge from subsidiaries, atfıliates and jointly controlled pannerships and cannot b
recognised within protit for the period

Common Equity Tier t capital before regulatory adjustments
26530!

Common Equity Tier 1 capital: regulatory adjustments

Prudential valuation adjustments -

The sum of the net Ioss for the cunent period and the previous years which could not be absorbed by the retainec
eamings_and_losses_recognised_in_eguity_in_accordance with TAS 24.682
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İNFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FİNANCIAL POSİTİON AND
RİSK MANACEMENT (Continued)

lmprovement costs for openting leasing 21

3oodwill (net of related tas Iiability)

)ther incangibles otherthan mortgage-senicing rights (net of related ta Iiability) 36( 58

Deferred tax assets that reiy on future profıtability excluding those aHsing from temporarv difterences (net of relatec
tas Iiability)

:ash-now hedge resene

ShoPflıll of provisions to expected losses

Securitisation gam on sale

5ains and osses due (0 chrnıees in o’vn credit risk on fair aIued iabilities

Defıned-benefit pension fund net assets

lnvestments in own shares

Credits estended contrary to the fourth paragraph of Articles 56 of the Baııking Law

lnvestments in the capital of banking, [inancial and insurance entities (hat are outside the scope of regulaton
consolidation, net of ciigihle short positions, where the bank does not own more than 10% of the issued share capital
(amount above 10% threshold)
Signiticant investments in the common stock of banking, financial and insurance entities that am outside the scopt
of regulatory consolidation. net of eligible short positions (amount above 10% threshold)
Mongage servicing rights (amount above 10% threshold)

Deferred ta assets arising from temporaıy ditlerences (amount above 10% threshold, net of related tas Iiability)

Amount cxceeding the 15% threshold (as set out in the paragraph 2 of Ihe Provisional Mide 2 of the Regulation
on Hanks’ Own Funds)

ofwhich: signifıcant investments in the common stock offlnancials

of which: mortgage servicing rights

of which: dckrred tas assets arising from temporary difterences

National specifıc regulatory adjustments :hjch shall be determined by the Board

Regulaton adjustments applied to Common Fquity Tier 1 due to insullicient Additional Tier 1 and Tier 2 to coveı
leductions

FornI regolatory adjustments ta Common equity Tier t
25.06

Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CETI)
240.232

ADDITIONALTIER t CAPITAL

Pretlered shares that are not included in Common [quity Tier t capital and related shares issue premiums

Eligibic capital insıruments and relevant share issue premiums Ihat are approved by the Agencv

Eligible capital instruments and relevanı share issue premiums that are approved by the Agency (For the purpose

of the Provisional Anicle 4 ot the Regulation on Hanks’ Own Funds)
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İNFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FİNANCIAL POSITİON AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continned)

Additional Tier 1 capital before regulntory adjustments

Additional Tier 1 capital: regulatory adjustments

lnvestments in own Additional ‘Her 1 instnimenıs

Reciprocal cross-holdings in Additional Tior 1 instmments

lnvestments in the capiıal of banking. fınancial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of rcgulator>
consolidation. net of eligible shon positions. where the bank docs not own more than 10% of the issued common
share capiıal of the entity (amount ahove 10% lhreshold>
Signifıeant investments in the capital of banking. linancial and insurance cntities that are outside the scope of
egulatoıy consolidation <net of eligible shon positions)

National specifıc reguIatoı adjustments which shall be determined by the Board

Regulatory Adjustmcnts which wili be deducted from Tier 1 capital during the transition period 24

3oodwill and other intangible assets and related deIirred tax Iiabilities which vill notdeducted from Common Eguity
Eier 1 capital for the purposes of the first sub-pangraph of the Provisional Article 2 of the Reculation on Banks’

Own Funds (-) 243

Net defered tıx assedliability which is not deducted from Common Eguity Tier 1 capital for the purposes of the sub
iaraeraph of the Provisional Anicle 2 of the Regulation on Banks Own Funds (-)

Regulatory adjustments applied to Additional Tier 1 duc to insutflcient Tier 2 to cover deductions

Total regulatory adjustments to Additional Tier 1 capital

Fotal Additional Tier 1 capital

rotal Tier 1 capital (Tier 1 capital = Common Equity Tier 1 capital + Additional Tier 1 capital)

TIER 2 CAPITAL

Eligible capital inslmments and relevant share issue premiums thaı are approved hv the Agency

Eligible capital instmments and relevant share issue premiums Ihat are approved hv the Agency (For the puq,ose
ifthe_Provisional_Anicle_1 of the_Rcgulation_on_Banks’_Own_Funds)

Pmvisions 3,88

11cr 2 capital before regulatory adjustments

Tier 2 capital: rcgulatory adjustmcnts

tnvestments in own Tier 2 instmments

Reciprocal cross-holdings in Tier 2 instmments

Investments in the capital of hanking. tinancial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulator>
consolidation. net of eligible shoft positions, where the bank does not own more than 10% of the issued common
share_capital_of the_entity_(amount_above_the 10%_threshold)_<-)
Signiflcant investments in the capital banking, İinancial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory
consolidation <net of eligible shon positions) (-)
National specitic regulatoıy adjustments which shall be determined by the Board

Total regulatory adjustments to Tier 2 capital
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İNFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED F[NANCİAL POSİTİON AND
RİSK NİANAGEMENT (Continued)

Total Tier 2 capital 3,880

Tatat Capital (The sum of Tier t capital and ter 2 capital)
2338M

The Suni of ter 1 Capital and Tier 2 Capital (Total Capital)

Credits extended contnry to the provisions of Anicles 50 and 51 of the Banking Law

Ponion of the sum of the hanks’ real estate net book values. vhich is in excess of Iifty per cent of their own fund,
and net book values of those of merehandise and real estate ‘vhich have to be acquired due to their receivables ant
disposed of pursuanı to Article 57 of the Banking Law. which cannot be disposed of despite the lapse of a pedod ol
five years since the date of such acguisition
qational specilic regulatorv adjustments which shall be determined by the Board

Regulatory Adjustments which wiil be deducted from Total Capital during the transition period

Investments in the capital of banking, tinancial and insurance eotities that are outside the scope of regulalon
onsolidation, net of eligible short positions, where the bank does not own more than 10% of the issued commor
ham capiıal of the entity (amount above the 10% threshold) which wilI not deducted from Common Eguiıv Tier t
apital. Additional Tier 1 capital. Der 2 capital for the purposes of the first sub-paragraph of the Provisional Articit

! of the Regulation on Banks’ Own Funds (-)
Signifıcant investments in the Addidonal Tier 1 capiatl and Tier 2 capital of banking. linancial and insurance entitieL
hat ait outside the scope of regulatoıy consolidation. net of eligible short positions (amount above 10% threshold

which wili not deducted from Common Eguitv Tier 1 capital. Additional Tier 1 capital. her 2 capital for the purpose
of the first sub-paraeraph of the Provisional Ağicle 2 of the Regulation on Banks Own Funds 1-)

Signiflcant investments in the common stock of banking. financial and insurance entities that are outside the scop<
of regulatorv consolidation. net of eligible short positions(amountabove I0%threshotd). moflgage senicing right
(amount above 10% threshold), deferred ta assets arising from temporary differenccs (amount above 10% threshold
net of related ta-< liability) which ill not deducted from Common Eguity Tier 1 capitat for the purposes of the firs

sub-paragraph of the Provisional Article 2 of the Regulation on Banks’ Own Funds t-)

OWN FUNDS

Total Copital (The sam of Tier 1 capital and Tier 2 capital)
233,868

Total Risk Weighted Assets
309,187

CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATİOS

Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ratio (°“°)
71%

Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ratio (%)
58.65%

Capital Adequeacy Ratio (%)
59.60%
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INFORMATION RELATED TO UNCONSOLWATED FİNANCİAL POSITION AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

BU FFE RS

Lnstitution specifle bufter requiremcnt
0,63%

of which: capital conservation buffer requirement (°A>) 0,63%

ofwhich: bank specific countercyclieal bufter requirement (%)

The ratio of Additional Common Equity Tier 1 capilal which wiil be calculated by the first paragraph of the .krticle 4 ol

Regulation on Capital Consenation and Countercvclical Capital buffcrs 10 Risk Weighted Assets (%) —

Amounts below the (hresholds for deduction (before risk weighfing) —

N’on-signifıcant investments in the capital of other fınancials

Significant investments in the common stock of flnancials

Mongage servicing rights (net of related tax liabilitv)

Defered tax assets arising from cemporan’ ditirenccs (net of related tax Iiability)

Applicable caps on the inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 capital

Provisions cliuiblc for inclusion in Ticr2 in respect of eposurcs subject to standardised approach (prior to application of aip)

Cap on inelusion of provisions in Tier 2 undcr sıandardiscd approach

Provisions cligible for inelusion in Ticr2 in respect of exposurcs subjcct to inlemal ratines-based approach (priortoapplicationofcap

Cap for inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under inlemal ratings-based approach

Capital instruments subject to phase-out arrangements (oniy applicable bebveen 1 Jan 2018 and t Jan 2022

:urent cap on Additional Tier 1 capilal inslmmenls which subject to phase out arrangements in the Pmvisional Anicle
t of the Regulation on Bants’ Own Funds

Amount excludcd from ATI due to aip (excess oer aip after redemptions and malurities) which subject io Provisional
Aniclc 4 of the Regulaıion on Banks’ Oun Funds

Current aip on Tier 2 capital instruments which subject to phase out arangements in the Provisional Aniclc 4 of tht

Regulation on Banks’ Onn Funds

Amount excluded from T2 due to cap (excess over aip after redemptions and maturities) which subject to Provisional

Aniclc 4 of the Regulation on Baı±s’ Own Funds

(V Anıounts nı ıhıs coloom,ı represcnts the a,nounıs of irenıs ehat are suhjecl ta Iransition provisions in accordance wiih the teınprorary .Irtic/es tj

“Regıdanons regardıng ta ehanges on Rtgnlatrnn on Equin’ of Sa,ıks” and lake,, loto consideration at the end of transition process.
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INFORMATION RELATED TO UNCONSOLATED FINANCİAL
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

POSITİON AND

31 December
2015(9

COMMON EQUITY TIER 1 CAPİTAL
Vaid-in capibi to be Entitled for Compensalion aile, Ali Credilors 255000
Share premlum -
Share cancellation proflı -
Legal resenes 323
Income passed on to shareholdeıs’ eguity in accordance wııh TAS
Prolit -

Net Income for cunent period -
Prior period profit -

Provisions for possıble risks -
Ilonos shams of Associates, Sobsidiaries and Joinı-Venıures -
Commnn Eguitv ter 1 üpital flcforc Deduçtions 255324
Deductions [mm Common Eguit Ticr 1 Capital
Loss exccss of resenes and loss passed on to sharchoidcrs’ equıty in accordance with TAS (-3 24772
Leaschold lrnproverncnts t-) 26
Coodwill and other inmngible assets and related deferred tax liabilities. t-) 468
Net defened la incomdexnsc (-) 99
Shares noncomplianı vıth anıclc 56/4 ofthe Law (-) -
Dircet 0, indirect invcstmenıs on Bank’s own Common Der 1 Capital (-) -
Total net long position exceeding 0% of UanL’s Common Tier 1 capital. belonging to nvesımenıs on on funds of banks and
financial ınstıtutiofls that am not consolidated. ‘ittı a shareholdıng of 10% and Iow -
Total net long position cxceeding 10% of Dank’s Conuuon Tier 1 capital, belonging to invcstmenıs on ow funds of banks and
fınancıal ınstitutions ıhac am not consolıdattü wiıh a sharehold:ng of 10% and above -
Riglns of providing mongage senice excecding 10% of Common Tiar 1 capital t-) -
Dc0red tax asscts based on tempomıy ditVerences exceeding 10% of Common Tier t capital 1-) -
Balances in accordance with the tempomıy anicle 2/2 of Regulation on Sharcholders Equity of Banks exceeding 15% of
Common Tier 1 capital (-) -
Exeess amount arising from imal net long positlon belonging to investments on Common Tier 1 Capital of banks and financial
institutions thaı am not consolidated. with a shareholdinu above 10% -
Excess arnount arisıng from righıs of providing mongage service (-) -
Exceess amount ahsing from deftered tax assets based on tempomıy ditTercnces (-) -
Oiher iıems detennined by board (-) -
Deduction amount from Common Tier t Capiıal in case of shortape of additional Tıer 1 canımI or supplementaıy capital (-)
Total Deductions [mm Common Eguity Tier ICapilul 25365
Total Common Eguitv Ticr ICapitul 229.959
ADDITIONALTIER 1 CAPITAL
Premiums ofpdvilege share capital not ineluded in Common Equity Ticr t capilal
Debt ınstruments shich is sccn appropriaıe by corporation and premiums in accordar.ce wıth these insmjments (lssued after
1.12014) -
Debı ınstmments which it seen appropriate by corporation and premiums in accordance wııh these instmments (Issued before
1.1.2014) -
Additionul ter 1 Capitol Before Deductions -
Dedottions Fnm Additional ‘rier 1 Capilal
Drect or indirect insLstmcısıs hich bank pro ıdes for its’ ossi] addilionat Tier 1 capila] t-)
0% ecced pan of Comrnon Tıer 1 capaa] of bank )Yom ilie 50m of paflncnhip share on nks and fınancia] insıttalions ıhaı a,e

not constılidated, with a shareholding Icas utan 10% (—) -
10% cxceed pan ofCommon Tier t capıtal of hanL üm the tura of pannership share on hanks and financial ınstitutıons that are
not consolidated, with a sharcholding ot 0% and above (-)
Other items determrned hy board (-)
Dcduction amount of addııional core capiıai in case of there it not enough additıonai core capital or supplementan capital 1-) -
Tolal Deductlons Enım Additional 11cr t Capital
folal Addüional Ticr t CapitM -
Deductions [tom ‘[1cr t Capitol -
Non dedueted Common Tier t capital pan in aceordance with defened tax expense and goodwıll impaimıent and other intangible
flxed assets whıch ıs in temporaiy anıcle 2/t ofReuulation ofsharegolders’ Equity of Banks. (-)
Non dedueted Common Tier t capital pan in accordancc with net detrred wx income/expense which it in tempomıy aniclc 211 of
Regulation of Slıaregolders’ Eguitv of Sanks (-) 49
Total Tier 1 Cııpital 229,810
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INFORMATION RELATED TO UNCONSOLWATED FİNANCİAL POSITİON AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

31 December20l5V>
SUPrLEMENTARY CAPITAL
Deht instruments ‘hich is sean appmpriate hy corporation and premiums in aceordance with these instnımerns (Exponed afler

1 12014) -

Oeht instmments hich is scen appmpriaıe by corporation and premıums in accordance wiih these instnıments (Exponed before
1 12014) -

Pledged soumes to bant fiom shaıeholden fiich 5 used for share capital incrcasing of bant -

General Provısions 2,670

Supplementary Capital Ueforc fleducıions 2,670

Deduc(ions From Supplcmcntary Capital
Direcı or indirect ınvestmer.ts which bank provides for 15 o1i supplcmcntary capital (-) —

I0%exceed pan of Common Tier 1 capıml of basık from the suni of parınership share on banks and Onancial institutions that
ara not consolidated. “ıth a shamholding Iess than 10% (-)
l0bexceed pan of Common Tier 1 capıtal ofbank fiom dıe suni of pannership share on hanks and financial institutions that
ara not consolidated. “th a shaıeholding of 10% and ahove (-) -
Oıhcr iıenis deıeniıincd bv board (-) -
Tolal Deductions From Supplementap Capital -
TornI Supplementary Capital 2.670

CAPITAL 2)2.48(1
Loans extended being noncomphant with anicles 50 and 51 of the Law <-) -
Net book values of propenies owned, excceding 50% of hanks cqwty and propenies, and trade goods ovenaken in exchange for
Ioans and receivables dut should be disposed within flveyears in accordance ‘ith anicle 57 of the Law, but not yetdisposed t-) -
Investments (o Ioans extended to hanks, fınancial institutions (domestic and abroad) and qualifıed sharcholders, ute secondaıy
subordinated ban and dcbt instmments purchased from these institutions issued, ilke priniary and secondaay subordinated ban
t—)
Deduçtion froni cquity in aceordance with 2nd anicbe of 2Oth item in Regularity of Measurement and Valuation of Capital
Adequacy of Banks (-) -
Other accounts determined by board (-) -
Non deducted pan of conson equity deri , additional core and supplementary capiıal in accordance witli tempomıy anicle 2/1 of
Regubation of Sharegolders’ Equity of Bankswhich is 10% exceed pan of Common Tier 1 capital of bant from the suni of
pannership share on hanks and financial insthutions that ara not consolidated, with a sharehobding Iess than 10% t-) -
Non dcducted pan of comon equity ıierl. additional core and supplementaıy capital in accnrdance with tempomıy anicic 2/1 of
Regulation of Slıaregolders’ Equity of Banks which is 10% exceed pan of Common Tier t capital of bank from Lise suni of
panneishıp share on hanks and financial institutions that ara not consolıdated, with a sharehoiding of 10% or above (->
Non dcducted pan of comon equity tierl genenting from exceed amount generating from investments to Common Tier 1
capitais ofpannership share on hanks and fınancial insıiıutions dut am not consolidated, with a shareholding of 10% and abova,
temporarv dilTerences of deferred mx income and the right of nflering mongage services explained in the Ist and 2nd pamgraphs
of tcmponsrv anicle 2 of Regulation of Shareholders Eguitv of Banks 1-) -
SIIAREIIOLDERS’ EQUITY 232.480

Amounts Below Overrun Amounts in Appiied Reducina Proredures 382
Amount genemtıng from tong position of investnicnts 10 sharcholders’ equıly and pannership share on hanks and financial
iftstııutions ıhat are not consolidated. ıvıth a sharcholdıng bass ıhan 10% -
Amounı generacing from tong position of ınvesouents ta sharelınldcrs’ equity and pannetship share on hanks and financial
instııutions ıhat are not consolidmed, with a shareholding of 0% or above. -
Amount genemcing from right of ottering mongage senıce -
Amounc generacing fum teniporan ditTerences of dcferred inenme 11% income 382

Ğ Tura! capital has heen calcıdoıed in accordance ıril/ı ilie Regıı/aııoiıs regarding ta c/wııges on Regzdation on
Eguin’ of Hanks effectıve frans dale 31 Afarch 2016. the oıfon,aanon giren in the prior periad ev/utan has been
calcu/aped pursuan! roforiner regvlarion.

b. Information nbout instruments that wilI be inciudcd in total capital calculation:

N on e.
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INFORMATION RELATED TO UNCONSOLATED FINANCİAL POSITION AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continned)

11. EXPLANATIONS ON CURRENCY RİSK

The Bank’s foreign cunency position is managed within the Iimits set by legislation and the Bank.
The basic principle in foreign currency risk management is not to be exposed to currency risk.
Accordingly, the exchange-trading risk positions are not allocated to the limit, banking accounts as of the
currency by creating a matched asset-liability structure is aimed to provide natural protection. The Bank
uses derivative fınancial instruments such as fonvard foreign exchange contracts and currency swaps for
hedging purposes in foreign currency denominated transactions.

Bank’s methodology of digitising the foreign curency position includes the use ofstandard method when
calculating the capital adequacy ratio and application of intemal stress tests/ sensitivity anaiysis.

The Bank’s publiciy announced foreign exchange bid rates as of the date of
for the last five business days prior to that date:

the Fınancial statemenıs and

Bid Rate 3 .0004 3.3548

USD LURO

1. Bid rate 2.9959 3.3608
2. Bid rate 2.9764 3.3362
3. Bidrate 2.9709 3.3401
4. Bid rate 2.9846 3.3546
5. Bid rate 2.9474 3.3044

The simple arithmetic average of the Bank’s foreign exchange bid rates for the
the balance sheet date:

last thirty days preceding

30 September
2016

USD
31 December

2015
30 September

2016

EURO
31 December

2015

Ariihmetic average - 30 days

By 31 December 2015; The Bank’s USD bid rate is 2.9181 and EUR bid rate is 3.1838.

2.9602 2.9177 3.3211 3.1770
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İNFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL POSİTİON AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

İnformation on currency risk of the Bank:

The following table shows the foreign cuneney net general position of the bank on the basis of
foreign cnrrencies. In accordance with GAAP. assets which are indexed to foreign currency are
shown on financial statements as TL rather than foreign currencies.

Assets which are indexed to foreign curency are considered as foreign currency item in calculation
of foreign cureney net general position. In accordance with the “Regulation on Calculation and
Irnplementation of Foreign currency net general position/equity standard rate by hanks on
consolidated and non-consolidated basis”. marketable derivative fınancial assets, hedge derivative
financial assets, deferred ta. asset and paid in cash expenses in assets; general provisions, deferred
tax liabllity, marketable derivative fınancial liabilities. hedge derivative financial liabilities and
equities in liabilities are taken into account in calculation of exchange risk. Therefore. there are
differences between foreign currency assets and liabilities total included in table below and those
included in balance sheet. Actual foreign currency position of the Bank is shown in the table below
in fınancial and economic context.
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İNFORJ’IATION RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FİNANCİAL POSITİON AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Liabilities
Basık Deposits
Foreign Currency Deposits
Funds From lnterbank Money Market
Funds Borrowed From Other Financial Institutions
Marketable Securfties lssued
Miscellaneous Payables
Hedging Dedvative Financial Liabilities
Other Uabilities

Tabii Llabllities

Net On-balance Sheet Position
Net OfT-balance Sheet Position

Financiai Derivative Assetsel
Financiai Derivative Liabiiitiew’)

Non-Cash Loans

39.449

78
39,527

9,088
(6,710)

6,710
24,570

81.425

1.231
82,656

14306

26,144

t’) Foreign exclıange Ifaked Ioans amourningıo TL 36,392 <31 D:c:rnbcr 2015 TL 23.836) alt a]so ıneluded.
<“3 Fon’.ard and swap ınnsacrıons neluded.

EURI Total
30 Sepflember 2016
Assets

Cash and Balances with The Central Basık of the
Republic of Turkev 1 17,0521 - 17,053
Due From Banks 554 11.247 8 11,809
Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit er Loss -ı - - -
Interbank Money Market Placements - - - -
Available-for-sale Financial Assets - - - -
Loans(*) 48.058 68,6221 - 116.680
Investments in Associates, Subsidiaries and Joint
Ventures - - - -
Held-to-maturitv lnvestments - - -
Hedein Derivative Financial Msets -: -
Tanaible Asseis -! . -

irnanibkAssets -- --

Other Assets 2 41 43
Tabii Assets 48,615 — 96,962 8 145,585

31 December 2015
T!4!sets 15,055 89,355 10234 1(4,644
Total Liabilities 6,409 75,1711 - 81.580

Position J 14,184 10,234 33,064
NetOff-baiancesbeetPosition (18383) - (26,822)

Financial Derivative_Assets 8.437j -ı 8,437
Financial Derivative Liabilities 16.875 18,384 -! 35,259

Non-Cash Loans (‘ 24.101 41.563, .666; 67,330

120,874

1.309
122,183

8 23,402
(6,710)

6,710
50.714
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P1FORMATION RELATED TO UNCONSOLİDATED FINANCİAL POSİTİON AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continned)

111. EXPLANATİONS ON İNTEREST RATE RİSK

Interest rate risk is the risk that expresses the effects of fluctuations in the market interest rates on the
value inerease/decrease of the Bank’s interest rate sensitive assets and liabilities.

The interest rate sensitivitv of Asseis, Liabilities and Off-balance sheet items is carefuliy followed up by
the treasury department of the Bank. Assets and liabilities which are sensitive to interest are managed in
such a way that minimizes the interest risk.

The interest rate risk of the banking items is measured legaliy in accordance with the “Regulation on
Measurement and Assessment of Standard Shock Method on the interest rate risk arising from banking
accounts”, and this legal limit k monitored and reported monthly, based on this measurement.

İnterest rate sensitivitş of the Bank:

a. İnterest rate sensitivity ofassets, liabilitles and off-balance sheet items based on repricing dates

Liabilitles
Hank Deposits
OtherDeposiis

-

Funds From lnıerbank Money Market
MiscellaıwousP-ayables
MarIetable Securitles lssued
Funds Borrowed From Other Financial
Institutions
Other Liabilities (‘1

Tabii Liabilities

4.893

36.178

41,071

15.378
5

15383

75,4 16
47

75,463

43 .43 7

43,437

21

26 1,458
261,479

(‘) Oıhcr a,ncts jnclıadc, mi,ccllancaüa rccajy,bk,. tajıgibla Asacan, intangible Annem and noninlaemn bearing amacım in nita annem and aax annem,.
(‘‘) Shareholdcra’ eqaiay, mıon.incercts buzim,gliabiliıie, in amher Iiabiiitien and an liabiliay in prcacnıcd undcrOıhcrLiabiliaicW’ in hc “Non.Intcrcam Beadng’ cotuma.

.

N0n
• Up tat 1-3 3-12 5 Year Interest

30 September 2016 Month Months Months 1-5 Yearl and over Beajg Tabii
Assets

Cash (Cash in VauIL Ellectivcs. Cash in
Traıısiı. Cheques Purehased) and
Balances with The Central Bank of the
RepublicofTurkey 17.016 - . - - — 1,236 18,252
De From Banks 10.501 - - - - 1,329 11,830
Financial Assets at Fair Value Through
ProfltiLoss — 1 - - - - - - -

lrnerbank Money Market Placements 10.503
- -1 - .

- 10.503
Available-for-Sale_FinancialAsscts 172 5,433 6,625 - - - 12230
Loans 173,904 69.231 123.455 4,208 - - 370,798
I-Ieid-lo-Maturity Investments - - - - -

- - - 13,220 13,220
TotaiAssets 212,096 74,664 130,080 4,208 15,785 436,833

Balance Sheet Lon Position 17 1,025 59,281 54,617 - - 284,923

Balç

heetShortPosition —— J) - (245,694) J4,9
Off-balanceSheetLong Position - -

- - -

Off-balance Sheet Shon Position - - - - - -

Tahıl Position 171,025 59,281 54,617 (39,229) - (235,694) -

4.893

2t

170,409
261,5 10
436,833
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INFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITİON AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Liabilities
Bank Deposits -

Other Deposks
Funds Fmm lnterbank Money Market 1 —1
Misccllaneous Payables
Marketable Securitles lssued
Funds Bormwed From Other
Financial Inslitutions 9.125 -‘ 21.0861 41.100
Other Liabi! ties (“)

Total Liabilitles 9,125 21,086 4 1,100

1

100

250,994
251,094

Oılwı asır, include. mheII.ncoua rüv.bkı. lribIe Asır.,, imangiblc Anscsn and r.on-ir.ıaaıs bwisg nsds bi oıb ması aM Isı inen
ShreFmlden equiıy. noo.inıatubearirıg Iiabiliıies.n sıha Iiab!iIieı and az iabiliıy is p,esentd ur4uOtUabiLüio’ in be Naı—Iniercsı Bc,ıin3 courn.

Nen
Up ta 1 1-3 3-12 5 Year Interest

jP!çç!PJL n —. Total
Asseis . —____

Cash (Cash in Vault, Effectives, Cash
in Transit, Cheques Purehased) and
Balances with The CBRT 11.772 - - - 891 12,663
Due From Bants 26,015 - - - 21,342 47,357
Financial Asseis at Fair Valuc

.1kçpqg!ı!Epi1!..Lp. —-.- -—
- 604 - - - — 604

Intcrbank Money Market Placements - . - -

Available-for-SaIe Finaıwial Asseis 256 9.363 - - - 9,619
Loans 105.683 41,488 52,3571 1164 44.0521 - 245,744
HeId-to-Maturity Investments -

- -I - -1 . -

OtherMsets() - - -I - - 6,418 6,418
Tetal Assets - 143,726 42,092 61,720! 2,164 44,052 28,651 322,405

Balance Shcet Long Position I34Ş42.092[ 40.634 44,052 261,379
• Balance Sheet Short Position - -l (38,936) - J2,443) (261,379)

OIT-balance Shect LopPositian -. - -! - - -. - -

OIT-balance Sheet Shon Position - - - - - - -
Tetal Position . 134,601 42,O92 40.6341 (38,936) 44,052 (222,443)i -

100

71311
250,994
322,405
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INFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITİON AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continucd)

b. Average interest rates for monetary financial instruments:

The average interest rates in the following tables are calculated by weighting the simple interest tü
principle amounts.

PŞçp!çıPçP1L_.1gj4 İL4
ssets

Cağ (Cash in Vault. Effectives. Ca in
Transit, Cheques Purchased) and Balances
wiıh ıhe CBRT 0.49 . 4.78
Duc From Banks f . 0.52 9.83
Financial Asseıs at Fair Vaiuc Through
rnfldLo --

.

lnterbank Money Market Placemcrns . . - 9.95
Available-for-Sale Finaııcial Msets .: -

. [0.01
Loans 3.42 4.88 . 1311
HeId-ıo-Maturity [nvestments -1 - . -

Liabilities
Bank Deposits -ı - - -

Other Depasits -ı - - -

Funds From lnterbank Money Market - - 9.09
Miscellaneous Payables j - - - -

Marketable Securities Issued - - - -

Funds Borowed From Other Financial Inst i 1.71 2.82 9.87

EUR% USD°A JPY% TL°A
31 December_2015
%ssets

Cash (Cash in VauIL Etlectives. Ca in
Transit. Chcques Purchased) and Balances
with ıhe CBRT . - - -

Dua From Banks - 0.99 10.60
Financial Asseis at Fair Valuc rhrough
Prolit’Loss . - - -

Interbank Money_Market Placemenıs . - - 10.95
Available-for-Sale Financial Asseb . - - 8.80
Loans 4.80 4.82 - 12.28
l-IeId-Lo—Maturity lnvesıments . — . —

Liabilities
— -!

-

Othççptfi_____

— f
—_______ -

runds Fromi rbank M 9.79
MiscellaneousPayables

— -

Marketable Securities Issued . - . -

Funds Borrowcd flom Other Financial Inst. 2.00 3.25 . 10.75

IV. EXPLANATIONS ON EQUİTY POSITION RİSK

The Bank does not hold equity position as of3O September 2016 (31 December 2015: None).
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V. EXPLANATIONS ON LIQUİDITY RİSK

a) Information on risk capacity, responsibilities and structure of Iiquidity risk management,
reporting of Iiquidity risk at bank, Iiquidity risk management ineluding how Iiquidity risk strategy,
policy and implementations communicates with board of directors and business units:

Liquidity risk is the risk occurring asa resnit of non-availability of sufflcient cash on hand or cash inflow
to meet cash outflows in a timeiy manner completely as a result of imbalance in cash flows. Treasury
department manages the Iiquidity of the Bank daily and informs assets and liabilities committee weekly
about the Iiquidity level of the Rank. Treasuıy department is responsible for planning Iiquidity
management, taking measures and informing the senior management ofaforementioned issues.

The Bank forms its assets and liabilities in balance not to create a negative gap on cumulative basis in
maturity segments.

in accordance with the “Regulation on Measurement and Evaluation of Liquidity Adequacy of Banks”
entered into force after published on Offlcial Gazette datedNovember 1,2006 and numbered 26333 by
BRSA, weekly simple average of total liquidity adequacy rates related to primary maturity segment and
total liquidity adequacy rate related to secondary maturity segment cannot be Iess than 100% vhile weekly
simple average of foreign currency Iiquidity ratio related to primaiy maturity segment and foreign
currency adequacy rate related to secondaiy maturity segment cannot be iess than 80%.

Treasuıy department manages the Iiquidity of the Bank daily and informs assets and Iiabilities commiflee
weeklv about the liquidity level of the Bank. Treasuıy department is responsible for pianning liquidirv
management, taking measures and informing the senior management of aforementioned issues.

Financial planning and control department is legaliy responsible for measuring and reponing of liquidity
risk. Stress test applied to liquidity position and calculation of liquidity coverage rate is performed by
Liquidity Management Department.

Risk Management Department monitors related unit’s activities and reports to the Senior Management
monthly.

b) Information on centralization grade of Iiquidity management and funding strategy and its
functionality among Bank and its affıliates:

There 15 no structured iiquidity management requiring centralization between bank and its afthliates.

e) Information on funding strategy of the Bank ineluding policies related to diversity of funding
sourees and periods:

The main funding sources of the Bank are provided by domestic and foreign banks and repo transactions
and Money market transactions and diversification of aforementioned sources are made in order to
minimize liquidity risk. Financial institutions Department carries out studies which are required to relate
supplying of long term foreign source.
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RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

ç) Information on liquidity management based on currencies forming at least 5% of total liabilities
of the Bank:

Almost ali the iiabilities of the Bank consists of TL, USD and EUR and equities mainly forming the TL
sources.

TL iiquidity of the Bank is managed through funds provided from domestic and foreign banks via repo
transactions made in BIST using high quality (premium) securities.

TL and foreign curreney cash [low of the Bank in scope of Balance sheet management is monitored
separateiy. Risk Management Unit reports to ALCO weekly and Board of Directors ona monthly basis.

d) Information on liquidity risk reduction techniques

Liquidity limits are determined in order to keep the risk regarding liquidity risk in defined limits and to
monitor liquidity position. The aforementioned limits have been determined in accordance with
“Regulation on Measurement and Evaiuation of Bank’s Liquidity Adequacy” in Risk Limits document
and approved by Board of Directors.

e) Diselosure regarding use of stress test

At least one of the following liquidity stress tests related to issues mentioned below is appiied monthly
and result of the related test is reported to Board of Directors by Risk Management Unit.
- Negative influence of economic crisis occurring in domestic fınance markets on the liquidity

of the bank.
- Negative influence of global crisis on the liquidity of the Bank.
- Negative influence of a problem occurred within the Bank (abuse, fraud, reputation risk etc.).

Threshold ofweekly and monthly liquidity rate for stress tests which shall be applied for above mentioned
scenarios is taken into consideration as 80% for foreign currency assets/liabilities and as 100% for total
assets/l iabi 1 ities.

t) İnformation related to emergency and unexpected situation plan for Liquidity:

“Emergency and unexpected situation plan for Liquidity” is approved by the Board of Directors and
estabiished in order to manage possible liquidity crisis and required actions for losses which can occur in
extraordinary conditions are determined with preventing rnechanisms and liquidity squeeze scenarios.
The scope of the aforementioned plan is to pre-determine applicable scenarios, measurement of liquidity
risk and the actions which shall be taken towards those risks.
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INFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITİON AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

g. Liquidity ratios realized in the current period

--—-------—

ist Mat ÇyTruncftç(wççkıy) (!yL
Fd FC+TU FC FC+TL

verage(%) —-—.- — 254 422
Maximum (%) 193 957 150 775
Minimum(%) IlO 393 88 296

(e !4y.L. !!!911’ı
[t FC+TI Fd Eti-TL

llflccernber2Ol5fl______ — —

————-.—-.-——

— Ş3 li.. —

18
Maximum(%) 12.655 1.461 531 1.161

Minimum(%) 171 390 86 386

(*) Monthly unconsolidaled liquidity muns for the üst thmee months including Lhe reporting period are accounted in the lables above.
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INFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FP{ANCIAL POSITİON AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

h. Liquidity Coverage Ratio

Referring to the BRSA’s announcement dated 29112/2014, No: 30223; it is announced that development and
investment banks’ consolidated and unconsolidated Iiquidity coverage ratio wilI be applied as 0 % by 2017
aceording to paragraph 5 of article 4 of Regulations About Banks’ Liquidity Coverage Ratio Measurement.

Current Pcriod-30 September 2016 <**>
Toto! amonnt which is not Totol amooni which is applied
applied considcratinn rate consideration rate

.rp+Yr YI’ •fP+YP 1
lIilı-guality Liguidty Assets (İlLA)

1 l-lih-guaIity Liguidty Asscts 18,862 8,155

Cash Outflows

2 Real person asseis and retail assels .

3 Stable asseis .

4 Lower Stable assets - . . —

5 Out of junior debts from real person assets and retail assets 21,331 17.018 21.331 17.018

6 Operational asseis .

7 Non —operating assets -

8 Otheriuniordebt 21,331 17.018 21.331 17.018

9 Secured Debts . -

IoOthercash Outflows 33.359 26,407 13,526 12.279

1 1 Derivative liabilities and margin Iiabilities 304 2.860 304 2,860

1 2 Debıs fronı Struclured tinancial instmments .

1 3 PaymenL commiLmenis for debLs tü fınancial markeıs and oLher off
balance sheet Iiabilities 33.055 23.547 13.222 9.419

14 Revocable oft-balance sheeL other IiabiliLies and other contractual
Iiabilities notwithstanding (0 any conditions . -

15 Other inevocable ot conditionaliy revocable off-balance sheet liabilities 113.003 30.267 11.300 3.027

I6TOTAL CASII OUTFLOWS 36,157 32324

CASII INFLOWS

17 Secured receivables .

18 Unsecured receivahles 199.265 3.924 147.557 3,459

19 Other cash inllows 95 32 95 32

20 TOTAL CASH INFLOWS 199360 3.956 147,652 3.391

Upper limit npplied nmount

21 TOTAL İlLA STOCE 18,862 8.155

22 TOTAL NET CASII OITFLOWS (*) 11,539 28,833

23 LIQLJIDITY COVERAGE RTION (%) 163.46% 28.28%

(9 The part of ıotal cash inflows which cxceeds 75% of total cash outtlows is not being taken into account during the calculation of rclated amounts.

(9 Monıhly simple arilhmetic average of weekly unconsolidated liquidity coverage ratios for the third quaner of 2016 are calculated.
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İNFORMATION RELATED TO UNCONSOLİDATED FINANCİAL POSİTİON AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

i. Breakdown of assets and Iiabilities according to their outstanding maturities:

tip (ol I-3j 3-12j 1 5 Yaar and
Demand mç•ıJJn ili ŞŞçj Over Uncln çd (.)

JOSeptember2OlG .... . ..
Assets

Cash (Cash in Vault, Ellectives, Cash in
Transit Chequcs Purchased) and Balances
wiih the CBRT 1.236 17,016 - - - - 18,252

Duc From Banks 1.329 10,501 - - - - 11.830
Financial Asseb at Fair Value Through
ProfıdLoss - - - - - - -

Jçpn . _.: LP,.Ş9 - -

Available-for-Sale Finajıcial Assets 172 5,433 6,625 - 12,230

Loans - 132.297 24,634 162.550 51,317 - - 370,798

- - -- - - - - -

4!Ş!!Ş.LL__________

0Ş__j — - - 2,015 13.220

Tahıl Assets 2,565 181,694 30,067 169,175 51317 2.015 436,833

31 December 2015
Torni Assets 22.233 100,954 56,53! 83.215 13,307 44,052 2.113 322,405

Tahıl Liabilities 10.272 14,434 - 21,086 41.100 - 235,513 322.405

Net Liguidity Gap 11.961 86,520 56,531 62.129 (27.793) 44.052 (233.300)p -

Liabilitles
Bank Deposits

Other Deposits
Funds From Interbank Monev Market

Miscellaııeous Payobles
Marketable Securities lssued
Funds Bormwed From OIJıer Financial
Institutions

Other Liabihties (“)
Tahıl Liabilitles

Net Liquidity Gap

(9 Asseis ılıat ara necessary for banking acıivi(ies and that cannot be It(1uıda(ed in ilie alıan-Ların, suni as lixed asseis, associales and suhsidiaries, sıationary
slocks, prepaid espenses and bana under follow-ap, ara elassifled in tbıis cobumn.

(‘9 Slıareholders’ equily, provisions and commissions collecled in advancc ii presenled under ‘Other Iiabilities” ileın in lbıe Unciassifled” cobumn.

1,684
1,684

881

36,178

4.893

21
11.818
52.910

128.784

15.378

1,137
16,515
13.552

75.416

47
75,463
93.712

43.437

3 3437
7.880

246,824
246.824

<244.809)

170.409

4,893

21
261,510
436.833
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INFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLATED FINANCİAL POSITİON AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Vİ. EXPLANATIONS ON LEVERAGE RATİO

Unconsolidated leverage ratio was realized as 41 .96 % (31 December 201 5: 54.83%). The increase
occurred in the on-balance sheet assets and off-balance sheet transactions led to a change in leverage
compared to the previous period. Regulation has been linked to the provision of the minimum
leverage ratio of 3%.

Current Period* Prior Period *

Asset On The Balance Sheet

Assets on the balance sheet (excluding derivative fınancial instruments and ban

derivatives, including collaterais) 413,344 309,195

(Assets dcducted from core capital) (66!) (737)

Total risk amount for assets on the balance sheet 412,683 308,458

Derivative Financial lnstruments and Lean Derivatives

Renewal cost of derivative financial instruments and ban derivatives 179 498

Potential credit risk amount of derivative fınancial instruments and ban derivatives 97 238

Total risk amount of derivative fınancial instnjments and ban derivatives 276 736

Financing Transactions With Securities Or Goods Warrantles

Risk amount of fınancial transactions with sccurities or goods warranties (excluding

those in the balance sheet) 150 —

Risk amount arising from intermediated transactions -

Total risk amount of financing transactions with securities or goods warranties 150 -

Off-the-Balance Sheet Transactions

Gross nominal amount of the otl-the-balance sheet transactions 156,207 108,645

Adjustment amount arising from multiplying by the credit conversion rate - -

Total risk amount for otT-the-balance sheet transactions 156,207 108,645

Capital and Total Risk

Corecapital 238,889 229,104

Total risk amount 569,316 417,839

Leverage Ratio

Leveraac ratio 41.96% 54.83%
* Last three months average values
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INFORMATION RELATED TO UNCONSOLATED FINANCİAL POSITİON AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continned)

YU. EXPLANATIONS ON THE RİSK MANAGEMENT

Notes and explanations in this section have been prepared in accordance with the Communiqu on Diselosures
about Risk Managemeni to be announced to public by banks that have been published in offlcial gazette no 29511
on 23 October 2015.

a. General view to risk weighted amounts

Mm 1m Bm
RWA capital

reguirements
30 September 31 December 30 September

2016 2015 2016
1 Credit risk (excluding counterpafly eredit risk) (CCR) 371,390 238,! 14 29,71 1
2 Of which standardised appmaeh (SA) 371.390 238,114 29.711
3 Of which intemal rating-based (IRB) approach - - -

4 Counterparty credit risk 67 200 5
3 Of which standardised approach for counterparty credit risk (SA-CCR) 67 200 5
6 Of which intemal model method (1MM) - - -

7 Eguity positions in banking book under market-based appmach - - -

8 Eguity investments in funds — look-thruugh appmaeh - - -

9 Eguity investments in funds — mandate-based appmach - - -

10 Eguity investments in fiınds — fall-back approach - - -

Il Settlement risk - - -

12 Securitisation exposures in banking book - - -

13 Of which IRE ratings-based approach (RBA) - - -

14 Of which IRB Supervisoıy Fonnula Approach (SFA) - - -

15 Of which SNsimplifıed supervisoıy fönnula approach (SSFA) - -

16 Market risk 17.197 10.635 1.376
17 Of which standardised approaeb (SA) 17.197 10.635 1.376
18 Of which mntemal model approaches (1MM) - - -

19 Operational risk 20.533 4,432 1.643
20 Of which Bask lndicatorApproach 20,533 4,432 1.643
21 Of which Standardised Approach - - -

22 Of which Advanced Measurement Appmach - - -

23 Amounts below the thresholds for deduction (subject ta 250% risk weight) - - -

24 Floor adjustment - - -

25 Total (1+4+7+8+9+10+11+12+16+19+23+24> 409,187 253.381 32,735

b. CR8 — Risk weighted assets flow statements of credit risk exposures under internal rating based
approach:

The relevant table was not presented since the Bank does not apply intemal rating based approaclı.

c. CCR7 — Risk weighted assets flow statements of counterparty credit risk exposures under internal
model method:

The relevant table was not presented since the Bank does not apply internal model metlıod.

d. PR2 — Risk weighted assets 1kw statements of market risk exposures under internal models
approach:

The relevant table was not presented since the Bank does not apply internal model method.
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İNFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLATED FİNANCİAL POSITİON AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

YIlI. EXPLANATİONS ON OPERATING SEGMENTS

• Treasury and Asset
Liability

SJr!.aI!ü9._.... ....Ç!rP91!!.Ş!!!!N!!g .

Total Assets 370,798 66,035 436,833
Total Liabilitles 1,684 435,149 436,833

Net Interest Incomel(Loss)_________________________ 23,733 (833) 22,900
Net FeearCommissionincorne/(Ioss) 894 .

——__________ 1,521 1,521
J9 72

Provisions for Laan Losses and Other Receivables(-) (1,2 10) (,210)

PP9(:)________________ - —
ç.J 23,417 —- (!4Y

Tax Provision - (2,956) (2,956)

Net Profıt 23,417 (13,460) 9,957

Treasury and Asset
Liability

•.J’ Qd ç. ıı;._.... Total
As nt 31 December 2015
Total Asseis 245,744 76,661 322,405

Total Liabilities 10,272 312,133 322,405

For the P!’j9çs!!!çt!Q Septembr 2015
—

Net Interest Incomel(Loss) 10,877 6,963 17,840

Net Fec and Commission lncome/(Loss) 135 - 135
681 .

OtherOperatin8Sements Gainİ(Loss) 58
-

58

ProvisionsforLoanLosses andOtherRejabies( (1,573) (1,573)

Other Opera Expense (-) (8,927)

Profit Before Taz 9,439 (1,225) 8,2 14

Tax Provision (1,976) (1,976)
Net Profit 9,439 (3,201) 6,238
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SECTION FIVE

EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO
UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS

1. EXPLANATİONS AND NOTES RELATED TO ASSETS

1. Information related ta cash and the account of The Central Bank of the Republic of Turkey
(the “CRRT”):

a. Information on cash and the account of the CBRT:

_________49çpLÇ.16 ..

TL Et TL Et
Cash/Foreincurrency j___ 5
CBRT 1,180 17,050 782 11,870
Other - - - -

fotal 1,199 17,053 788 11,875

Information on the account of the CBRT:

30 September 2016 T 31 December20l5
TL4 TLt FC

Demand Unrestricıed Amount 1,180 34j 782 98
fime Unrestricted Amount - -ı -
time Restricted_Amount_____________ - 17.016] - 11.772
fotal 1,180 17.050; 782. 11.870

According to CBRT’s “Required Reserves Announcement” numbered 2005/1, for Turkish
currency and foreign curreney denominated liabilities, reseıwe requirement amounts held in
CBRT have been included in the above table. The reserve rates for TL liabilitles vary between
4% and 10.5% for TL deposits and other liabilities aceording to their maturities as of 30
September 2016(31 December 2015: 5% and 11.5% for alI TL Iiabilities). The resene rates for
foreign currency Iiabilities van’ between 5% and 25% for deposit and other foreign cunencv
liabilitles according to their maturitles as of 30 September 2016 (31 December 2015: 5% and
25% for ali foreign currency Iiabilities).

2. Information on financial assets at fair value through profit or Ioss:
a. As of 30 September 2016, the Bank has no financial assets at fair value through prof’it or Ioss

subject to repo transactions (31 December 2015: None).

As of 30 September 2016; there are no and financial assets giyen as collateral/are blocked
(31 December 2015: None).

b. Positive differences related ta trading derivative financial assets:
_0 Septem er..N!6 ...L,. ...M.Pçç.ç’ı1°JŞ

-—

TPi YI’
onçard —--————— —---.-—

________________

Swap

______

- - 604!
Futures - —. — —

____ ___

-i

____

Oth — .. t—- — .[ ____.___ZL____._- -
Total -; -I 604! -

c. Information on trading securities:

None (31 December 2015: None).

b.
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EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

3. Information on banks:

a. Information on banks:

30 September 2016
TL FC TL EC

Banks
Domestic_____ 21 10,502 24,028

._-_ 1,307 2,000
Headquarters and Branches
Abroad - - - -

Total 21 11,809 26,028 21,329

Information on foreign hanks accounts:

Unrcstricted Amount Restricted Amount
30 Septembeı 31 December 30 Septembeı 31 December

2016 2015 201< 2015
European Union Countries 555 287 -

USA. Canada 745 10,808 -

OECD Countries (*) - - -

OlT-shore Banking Regions - - -

Other
7!

12.234 -

Total 1,307 23,329 . -

(*) OECD Countries other than EU countries, USA and Canada.

4. Information on available-for-sale fınancial assets:

a. As of3O September 2016 there are financial assets giyen as collateral/biocked
515 (31 December 2015: TL 1,026).

As of3O September 2016 there are available-for-sale financial assets subject to
TL 5,048 (31 December 2015: None).

amounting to TL

repo transacilons

3QSep ber20 5
Debt Securiijes 12,230 9,638

...Jfl29 .....

9,638
Not Quoted -

Share Ceğiticates - -

Quoted on StockE
- — ....

Not Quoted - . -

lmpairmentProvision(-) -. - J12
fotal 12.230 9,619

5. Explanations on Ioans:

a. Information on ali types of ioans and advances giyen to shareholders and empoyees of the
Bank:

30 Septem ber 2016 Ş,J Decem ber2
Cash Non-Cashi Cashi Non-Cash

Direct Loans Granted Lo Shareholders 23,551 - 22,475

.tLkÇ 22 4Ş
Individuals . . . .. -

lndirect Loans Granted to Shareholders . . . -

LoansGrantedto Employees
Total 23,551 4 22.475

b.
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EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

b. Information on the first and second group Ioans and other receivables including Ioans that
have been restructured or reschedulcd:

Slandard Loans and Loans and Olber Reteivables Under Ciose

O(hcrReceivables

Monitoring —-

Loans and Loans and other receivahles Lonns and Loans and nıher receivahles

Otheı

Othed öseçonçttçr
ReceivabIe Reslruclured orJ ReceivabIe Restroctnred nr

.

ola! - Rcsch !_9r JI1LAu Other
Non-spedallzedLaans —j

Loansgiventoenterprises 127,42 J
ExpoftLeans 9.53 8.9l1 -i
hnponLaans
Loans Granwd ta Füwncia

Lor 188,53
ConsumerLoans —

CreditCards 1
Other 45.297 -

!anj.________ .z_________
)ther Receivahlci — — — — —

rowI 370.798 8,910 — - -

Number of modiflcations made to extenıf Standard Ioans and otheı Loans and other receivable
payment plan receivabies.! Jp4ççç_monitoJj

8.91d

S(andard loans and other Laans and other receivables

t_____________ receivables underelosemonitoring

O-6Months

6-I2Monıhs 8,911

I-2Years_______

zX’
5 Years and over

Total E 8.910

Exıended by 1 or 2 times

Extended hy 3.4 or 5 times

Extended by more ihan 5 times

Total
.. .1

8,91

t Breakdown of Ioans according to their maturities:

Standard Loans and Other Lnans and Recdvables Ender

—

CioseNlonitoring
Loans and Other Restructurcd or Loans and Other Rescructured or

Caslı Loans
Rcceıvablcs Rescheduled ReccvabIes Reschedulcd

Short-Tcrm Loans and OtlıcrRcceivnbles 78326
—

-- 8,910
-

Non-Specialized Loan5 278,326 8,9 10 - -

Specialized Laans — — - -

Other Receivables — — — —

%Iedium and Loııg-Term Louns and Othcı
Receivables 83,562 —ı - -

Non-Specinlized Loans 83,562 - -

Specialized Loans - - - -

Other Receivables — . . -
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EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED 10 UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

d. Information on consumer Ioans, individual credit cards, personnel Ioans and personnel
credit cards

None (3 1 December 2015: None).

e. Information on commercial instalment Ioans and corporate credit cards:

MediumLong
3OSeptem9______ ShortTerm Term Tom!

fl»nmeraflnsüıflmentkans-TC - 4208
Business ,esdentiaI laans .

Autcmoblle(onns - 4,208 4,208
Consumer Ioans .

Other . -

Commercial installmeM luans- Indexed to FC . -

Business residential laans — —

Automobile laans - — —

Consumer Ioans .

- -

Other - -

Commercial installment luans . FC - - —

Business residentıal laans - . — —

Automobile Ioans - . —

Consumer Ioans - - -

Otlıer - —

Corponte creditcards-TC - - -

lnstallmcnt - — —

Non-Insıa]lment - — —

Corpomte crediL cards-FC - -

lnstallment . —

Non-Insıallment - . — —

Oerdraft aceounls-TC (Commercial customer) -

Oçerdrali accounts-FC (Commercial cuslomer) -

Total . 4,208 3,208
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EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED
(Continued)

TO UNCONSOLİDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS

Medlu m-Long
Prior Period: 31 December 2015 Short Term Term Total

Commercial installmcnt Ioııns-TC 2,163 2,163
Busincss residential Ioans — —

Automobile Ioans 2,163 2,163
Consumer Ioans -

Other . -

Commercial inslailmenı leans- lndexed to FC -

Business residential Icans — . —

Antomobile Ioans -

Consumer Ioans -

Other -

Commercial inslallment Ioans FC -

Business residential Ioans — — —

Automobile loarn — -

Consumer Ioans — -

Other . — —

-

Installment — — —

Non-Installment - - -

lnstallment . - -

Non-lnstallment - - -

Overdraft accounts-TC (Commercial customer) - - -

Overdraft accuunts-FC (Commercial customer) - - -

Total - 2,163 2,163

Loans according to types of horrowers:

3OSeptember2Ol<

31 December201

Puhlic - -

Private 370,79 245,74’
Total 37O,79 245,74’

Distribution of domestic and foreign Ioans:

39 September20I 31 Decem bO
Domestic Loans 325,501 245,74’

•for*Jan —
45,97

Total 370,798 245,74’

ii. Loans granted to investments in associates and subsidiaries:

N one.

f.
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EXPLANATİONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

1. Specifıc provisions accounted for loans:

.----..-.---..-——--——.---— ...
3OSeSmber2OI 31 December2Ol

— - -
oansandçejvablcsyithDoubıfuiÇolleernbilit>

Uncollectible Loans and Receivables - -
Total -ı -

j. Information on non-performing Ioans (Net):

1. İnformation on non-performing Ioans restructured or reseheduled and other
receivables:

None (3! December 2015: None).

2. Information on the movement of total non-performing Ioans:

.__.JtLPfl__JYr%!9!!P —— V.Grou1
Lonns and OtherLoans and Other RcccivabIc
Receivables wiih wiik tncollectible Loan

Limited CnIIectabiIih4 DouhtfuI ColIectabiIiıı and Other Receivahle,

Pdnr Pedod End Balance: - - -
Additions (+) - -
Transfers from Other
Cateğorics of Non-performing
Loans (+) - - -
Transfcrs in Othcr Caleeorics
of Non-Perfonning Lonns (-) - - -
Collecıions (-) - — -
Write-oIfs (-) - — -

Corporate and Commcrc,aI
Loans - -

Rctail Loans - - -
Crcdit Cards - -ı -

— — - -: - -
Pedod End Balance: - -i -
SpecilicProvisions(-) - L_ -
Ne! Balance on Unlance Sheel;
Date - - -

3. Information on non-performing Ioans granted as foreign currency loans:

None (31 December 2015: None).
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EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLWATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

4. Information on non-performing Ioans based on types of borrowers:

WrÇPl’P._

Loans and Other Laans and Other Receivables
Receivables with nitft Uncollectible Loang

Limited CoIIectnbiIit. Doubtful Collcctabilitv and Other RcccivabIe

Current Pedod (Net) - -1

Leans gmnted ta corporate
entities and
realpersons (0 ssj__ _____.a. L___.
Specilic Provisions
Amounft-)
Loans granted 10

corpnratc entities and
rcalpersonsC’ct)____ - 1_____________

Banks (Gmss) -ı
Specitic Provisions Aınount
{_)

Hanks (Net)
Other Loans and Advances
(ÇrL,.__
Speciflc I’rovisions Amount
(_)

Other Loans and
Advances (Net) — —

‘rQL!ç4°q (Net> 1 -

Loans granted to corporate
entities and
realpersons(Gross)
Specilic Provisions
Arnounl(-)
Lonns granted ta
corporate entities and
reni persons (Net) —__________________

Banks (Gross) -

Speciflc Provisions
•lINet)

.____ .z
Other Loans and Advances
(Gross) -

SpeciticProvisionsAmounı :1 -

Other Loans and
Advan(Net) .İ

k. Information on the collection policy of non-performing loans and other receivables and

information on the write-off policy of the Bank:

Non-performing Ioans and other receivables are collected through legal follow-up and

liquidation of collaterais. Credits that have become losses in nature. are auached to the

certificate of insolvency or insuffıcient collateral documeni. and written off from the Bank’s

assets. However, if the Banks receivable is an insignificant amount compared to the costs and

expenses to be incurred for the preparation of said documents. writing off of assets may be

performed ifthe Board of Directors decides so. As of3O September 2016. there is no liquidation

ordecrease in assets. (31 December 2015: None).
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(Amounts are expressed n thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless othenvise stated.)

EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLİDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

6. Information on held-to-maturity investments:

None (31 December 2015: None).

7. İnformation on investments in associates:

None (31 December20l5: None).

8. İnformation on subsidiaries (Net):

None (31 December20l5: None).

9. İnformation on joint ventures:

None (31 December 2015: None).

10. İnformation on lease receivables (net):

None (31 December 2015: None).

11. İnformation on hedging derivative financial assets:

None (3 1 December 201 5: None).

12. İnformation on property and equipment:

Leased Fiıed Other Tangible
Prior Period End: 31 Decemher 2015 Immovahle Assets Fiıed Assets Total
:ost 271 716 987
Accum u!ated !.PL £L ...... ._.__Ç4İ) (483)
NetBookValue 135 369 504
Curren •E çpj ——_______

Net Book Value ot the beinninofthePeriod -____________ 135 369 504
Additions 215 215
Disposals{-).net

-

ğçpye i2°J±..__. <p2> (150)
lnaimient - -

:ost nt Period End 271 931 1,202
Accumulated Dçprecin •d End
Closing Net Book Valce 84 485 569

Leased Flxed OtherTangible
I’rior Period End: 31 December 2014 Immovable Assets Fized Asseis Total
:ost - 271 456 727
ccum aled Dprion(-) ...JŞ) (367> (435)
Net Book Valuc - 203 89 292
Current Period End: 31 December 2015
NctB okVaiueatthebeginningofüıePerio - 203 89 292
dditions 334 334

w.2M-kqL._ (3) (3)

Pq!19Pa(±_ - (6Ş) (119)

‘P3ft!!!L_. - -

Cost ot Period End 271 716 987
AccumulatedDepreciation aL Period ‘L(* .__Ji (32) (483)
Ciosing Net Book Valuc 135 369 504
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NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS
AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2016
(Amounts are expressed in thousands ofTurkish Lira (TL”) unless othenvise stated.)

EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

13. Informations on intangible assets:

Current Period Prior Period

-

3OSeptember2Oft 3 December2OL4
et Book Valuc at the beinnin of the Perioti 468

dditions 383 433

DisposalsN.net —____ —______

-

‘R£%Pj*_i±___ -

(241) (156)

Other() 610 468

14. Information on investment property:

None (31 December 2015: None).

15. Information on deferred tax asset:

The Bank calculates deferred tax asset or liability on the differences between the applied accounting
policies and valuation bases and tax legislation that comes from timing differences and reflects the
aınount on the fınancial statements.

As of 30 September 2016, the Bank calculated deferred tax asset amounting TL 334 and reflected
this amount to the fınancial statements (31 December 2015: TL 627).

İn the situation that the difference between the book value and value subject to tax of the
assets that are subject to deferred tax k related to equity accounts, deferred tax asset or Iiabihity is
netted with the relevant accounts in this group.

Temporary Temporary
Differences of Deferred TaxL Differences of. Deferred Tax

__________

Deferred Tax Base Amoun(r Deferred Tax Base: Amount:
Financial loss - - I,239L 247j

Provionforemphyeebenefits
- ____.._...__flı_____

Expenseprovisions____________ _Şj 40Q

Other . ],476 295E 7381 1471
1,850. 370t 3,7Oj__7Şj

.— -——-.,—- .————-———.—-

Tangible and intangible assets (162)1 (33N - -

Other — (3)FT5i (ili)

Defrred IPN!ity, net
.... ..J!İŞL P4.... nw

DeferrcdTaxAsseü(Liability),nct 1,672! 334! 27

16. Information on assets heid for resale and discontinued operations:

None (3! December 2015: None).

17. Information on other assets:

As of3O September 2016, other assets amount to TL 11,626 (31 December 2015: TL 4,738) and
don’t exceed 10% oftotal bahance sheet except off balance sheet commitments.
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PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLİDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2016
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless othenvise stated.)

EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED
(Continued)

Il. EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO LİABILITİES

1. Information on deposits:

The Bank has no deposits due to lis nature as an investment bank.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Negative differences related to trading derivative financial Iiabilities:

Tü FC Tü FC
onvard - (0
Swap

—— -! - 10: 28
utures -ı - -‘ -

Options -ı -ı - -

Other -ı ı - -

Total szl 20 28

3. Information on horrowings:

a. Information on banks and other financial institutions:

.

pme 2016 - 3lDecernber2OiS

TL! FC TL Et
Boroğs from the CBRT_____ - - - -

From Domestic Bants and Instilutions 19,005 27,850 - 1,751
From Foreign Banks. Institutions and
Funds 1 30.530 93,024 - 69,560

Total 49.535! 120,874 - 71,311

Information on maturity structure of borrowings:

_________________

30 September 2016 3’ PçpQJi_
FCI TL

Shon-tenn I9,005 40.767 - 30,231

MediumandLong-temı — 30,530 80.l07 - 41,100

frotnl 39,535 120,873 -ı 71,311

e. Additional explanation related to (tie concentrations of the Bank’s major Iiabilities on the
basis of concentrations, fund providing customers, sector groups and other criteria where
risk concentration is observed

The Bank, funds its assets mainiy with its capital and borrowings.

b.

t—
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PASHA YATİRIM BANKASİ A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2016
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless othenvise stated.)

EXPLANATİONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLİDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

4. Information on Repo Transactions:

5.

6.

7.

8.

30 September 2016 31 Deeember20l5

9. İnformation on hedging derivative financial Iiabilities:

None (3! December 2015: None).

{ 30 September 2016 31 December20i5
TL[ TL FC

Financial Insiituations 4,893 [
E-——- ------

Securities Issued

None (3! December 2015: None).

Information on florrower Fund:

1 Upto 1-3 3-12 15 Over

1 Demand 1 month Month Month ear Iears

30-Sep-16 [ -

Borrowcr fund 1,684 . .

31-Dec-151

Borrowcr tünd 10,272 . .

Information on other foreign source:

As of3O September 2016. other liabilitles amount to TL 12,190 (31 December 2015: TL 5,338) and
don’t exceed 10% oftotal balance slıeet except oWbalance sheet commitments.

Information on financial kase agreements:

Gross

_________

Net

______

Gross Net

__________L

.. - —____ -

l4Years

_____

-

____

-l

____

- -

TZZZ[ZZT*..ZEL Z tTZZZZZZD.
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NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
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EXPLANATİONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

10. İnformation on provisions:

a. Information on general provisions:

3OŞçptember 2016 31 December 2015
Provisions for Group Loans and Receivables 3,503. 2,130

Additional Provision for Loans and Receivables with
Extended Maturities - -

Provisions for Grotrnjj Loans and Receivables . - -

Additional Provision for Loans and Receivables with
Extended Maturities - -

Provisions for Nen Cash Loans

_________ __________

297 253
Other

_____ ________________ ______ ____________

80 287
3eneral Provisions 3,880 2.670

b. Information on provisions related with foreign currency difference of foreign indexed
Ioans:

As of 30 September 2016, proivisions related with foreign curreney difference of foreign
indexed loans amount 4 TL (31 December 20 1 5: TL 167) and is netted with Ioans amount on
the balance sheet.

e. Information on specifıc provisions for non-cash loans that are non-funded and non
transformed into cash:

None (31 December 2015: None).

d. İnformation on otber provisions:

i. İnformation on provisions for possible risks:

None (31 December 2015: None).

ii. Ohligations related to employee rights:

in accordance with Turkish Labour Law. the reserve has been calculated by estimating the
present value of the future probable obiigation of the Bank arising from the retirernent of
its employees. TAS 19 necessitates the actuarial valuation methods to calculate liabilitles
of enterprises. in this context, the foliowing actuarial assumptions vere used in the
calculation oftotal liabilities.

_____

..

____

—.-.. 3Oseptember2Ol6.3lDecember2o!5J

Discnunt nte (‘) 349

The movement of employee terrnination benefıts is shown below:

Balance at the Beginning of the Period

_________

160
— (54)

Balance nt the end of the period 180 234

in addition. as of3O September 2016 the Bank have unused vacation provision of TL 133
(31 December 2015: TL 65).

ili. Other provisions are explained if they exceed 10% of the total provision balance

Other provisions amount of TL 1.234 comprising of TL 972 is for bonus provisions and
TL 262 for ongoing Iawsuits and other. (31 December 2015: TL 1.333).
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NOTES TO UNCONSOLİDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
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(Amounts are expressed in Lhousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless othenvi se stated.)

EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLWATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

11. Information on taxes payable:

a. Information on current year tax Iiability:

1) Information on tax provision:

The Bank recognized TL 1,132. which is the remaining amount afler the deduction of 1,558
TL İemporary İaxes paid in the period from corporate tax, to financial statements as current
tax Iiability as of30 September 2016(31 December 2015: None).

ii) Information on taxes payable:

__________

!3OSep!ember2OI6i 31 December2ol5
pomtcTwPayabk lj_______
fa’ation on Markelabic Sccurities 1
gpyt —___________________________

ngcaioBlfl) 126 — 8!
Foreın Exchange Traıısacjojıa_

- -

ialuc Added Tax Payable 20 89

Jıher — 235

fotal 1,431 407

Information on premium payables:

Dccember2OlS
ociaISecurityPrcmiums -EmpJpyc 461 32

ocial Security Prcmiums
— Ernp!pyer 51 3

BankSodaIAid_Pension timci Premium-E
Bank Social Aid Pension Fund Premium—Empyer -

PensionFundMcrnbcrshipFccsandProvisions-Empioee -

Pension Fund Mcmbership Fces and Provisions - Emploer -i -

Unempjpsmerninsurance-Empiovee 31 2

Unernplo>ment_Insuıqpjgımpjp>ey___________________ -—_______

— ‘1 —-—— —

)lhcr - -

fofal 107ft 7!

h. Information on deferred tax liabiliiy:

Explanations on the taxation of the Bank are presented in explanations and notes related to
unconsolidated a5sets.

12. Liabilities for assets held for sale and assets of discontinued operations

None (31 December 2015: None).

13. Information on the quantity, maturity date, interest rate and supplier firm of the subordinated
Ioans giyen to the bank and transactional option if there are any marketable securities

None (31 December20ls: None).

ili)
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EXPLANATİONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

14. Information on shareholders’ equity:

a. Presentation of paid-in capital:

Common Stock 255,000 255,000
Pretred Stock - -

b. Paid-in capital amount, explanation as to whether the registered share capital system is
applied and ifso, amount of registered share capital ceiling:

The Bank does not apply the registered share capital system.

e. Information on share capital inereases and their sources; other relevant information on
increased share capital in curreııt period:

None.

d. Explanation on the transfen from capital resene to paid-in capital in the current period:

N one.

e. Information on capital commitments, the general purpose and the estimated sources for
these commitments until the end of the fiscal year and the subsequent interim period:

None (31 December 2015: None).

f. Information on the Bank’s income, profitability, prior period indicators on liquidity and
uncertainty on these indicators and their potential effects on the Bank’s capital:

The Bank considers there is no uncertainty regarding the prior period income, profltability and
Iiquidity indicators, Iherefore the Bank does not foresee an effect on capital.

g. Summary information about privileged shares representing the capital:

None (31 December 205: None).

k Information on marketable securities value increase fund:

...

0Sçpçm ç.c2
TL FC TL

Erom Subsidiaries, Afflhiates and John ventures - - -

Valuation diflrence . (90)
RaLe diflrence -J - -

Total 2___________ (90
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EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLİDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

111. EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO OFF-BALANCE SHEET ACCOUNTS

1. Information on off-balance sheet commitments:

a. The amount and type of irrevocable commitments:

rrevocable Comrnitments — — ,_çp 06 31 December 2015
FonvardAss purchase and salecommitrnen
PorwardDepositpurchaseandsalecornmitmenLs — .

——

2.009
Taxandlbndjjabıjıtieomexpor1coı!ment 6
Other Irrcvocable commjtments -

ütal 6 18,946

b. Type and amount of probable losses and obligations arising from off-balance sheet items

1. Non-cash loans ineluding guarantees, bank acceptances, collaterais and othen that
are accepted as financial commitments and other lefler of credits:

As of3O September 2016. the Bank has guarantee and indemnities amounting TL 149,215
(3! December 2015: TL 126,995) based upon the guamntee Ieuer.

2. Revocable, irrevocable guarantees and other similar commitments and contingencies

None (31 December 2015: None).

c, Total amount of non-cash Ioans:

Ekctric, Gas and \Vater
Constrıtction
Scrvicc
Wholesak and Retail Trade
Hotel, Food and Bevcragc Services

T! P9 o,tid Telecommunica
Finuncial lnstitutions
Rcal EstateandLsinSeıwiccs
SeIfEmploymentSa-vices —

Education Seniccs
l-Iealth and Social Services

_________

Other

d.

-

30 Septcmber2Ol63
Non-cash Loans Giyen against Cash Loans 68,502 -

MaturityoflYearorLessThanlYcar_ 16,000 —- -

With Original .Maıurity of More Than 1 Yaar 52.502 22,091
OlherNon-cash Laans 80,713 104,904
Total l49jiiI 126,995

Information on sectoral risk concentrations of non-cash Ioans:

Currenı Pedod Prior Period

_______________ ______

2016

___________

ıi_tliiJ_ (%) FC (%>

Forestrv
Fishinc

_______

. . -

nfactıırng,________J,ŞjJ 15,317
MJnln8
Produccion

30.30

—1 — —zzr-ızzzz
I.S35 3.091 13,686 21.81

1.10

1.319 1,34 15.417 30.40 1.730 2.90L,14.686
-

- 115 o.ı[ -

97.56
6,758 13321,079

96,103
8.870

11.147
9.250

63.336

28,539
9.00

3,130
56.28

2,095

2 1.81

54,690
4.13

5.25 6,929

11.32
9.39

64.3 0

91.66
33.241

450
23.55!

10,29
45,7 15

3.500

55.71
67.89

0.89
46.14

20,651

3.55

5.112

16.337
2.443

30.67
8.57

27.3 8
4.82

2,7 14
22350

4.03
33.19

Total 98,50! 100.00 50.714 100.00 59.665 100.00 67330 100.00
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EXPLANATİONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

e. Information on the non-cash loans ciassifled in Group 1 and Group 11:

3OSeptember 2016 GpI
Tü FC Tl FC

ion-Cash Loons 98,501 50,714
Letters of Guarantee 98,50 1 44,683 -

EÇPQ9ÇL_ - - -

Letters ofCredit - 5,851 —

Endorsements - — - —

Undenvritingcommitments
— - - -

. - - -

Other Commitments and Contingencies — - —

2. Information on derivative transactions:

Forward foreign curreny purchase 6,852 3,835
transactions
Forward foreign cureny seli 6,710 3,794
transactions
Currency swap-buy . 32,122
Cunency swap-selI . 3 1,465
Toplam 13,562 71,216

3. Information on credit derivatives and related imposed risks:

None (31 December 2015: None).

4. Information on Contingent Assets and Liahilitles:

(1) Conüngent assets

None

(ii) Conflnge,ıt liabllities

As of 30 September 2016, the Bank has reflected the provision for its ongoing lawsuits arnounting
TL 262 to the financial statements. The process regarding the law suits k stili ongoing and decisions
wilil be tinalised after trial.

The Bank issued indemniflcation leners in favour of its members of Board of Directors to protect
thern against possible ciairns.

5. Information on services in the name of others’ names and accounts:

None (31 Decernber 2015: None).
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EXPLANATİONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

IV. EXYLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO INCOME STATEMENT

1. Information on interest income:

a. Information on interest income on luans:

-_3oSeptember2Ol6 JoSeptember 2015
L Tü F TL[

Short-temı_Loans 20,7001 323 10,263 418
MediunüLong-term Loans 6851 2,O25 196 -

Follow-up — -İ - -

Premiums Received from RCSOUrCe Utilisation
SupportFund

—

1 -I - -

Tolal 21,385) 2,348) I0,459 418

Information on interest income on banks:

•9Şyçmber 20! 30 September 204
Tl FC TL FC

FromtheCBRT 94 - 15 -

From Domestic Banks 1,205 5,827

Fromoreign<s 12 122 16

HcadqdBnmchesAbroad -

Total 1,439 12 5,964 17
(‘)The nteresl income from requıred rescncs prcscıılnd in “Fiom luc CORT’ mc.

İnformation on interest income on marketable securities:

9!pİç!!P!t1PJL. 30 September 2015
TU FC TU FC

rrornTradıng FınancıalAssLts - — —

from Financial Assets aL Fair Valuc through Protit or b
Loss 1 -

rromAadaNefor,akrınanualAsseıs —- 1 243 1

:From I-leld-Lo-Maturitv lnvcstments -1 -

[rotal I,243 - 1,068 -

d. Information on interest income received from investments in associates and subsidiaries:

None (30 September 2015: None).

b.

e.

60



CONVENIENCE TRANSLATİON OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLİDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS ORIGİNALLY İSSUED
İN TURMSH, SEE NOTE İ OF SECTİON THREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2016
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless othenvise stated.)

EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

2. Information on interest expense:

a. Information on interest expense on borrowings:

30 September 2016 30 September 2015

Tl] FC Tl FC

Hanks 826 2,002 1 341

The CBRT -

Domestic Banks 99 123 1 15

Foreian Hanks 727 1,879 . 326

Headquarters and BranchesAbroad
—

Other Institutions - - - -

Total 826 2.002 1 341

k Information on interest expense giyen to investments in associates and subsidiaries:

None (30 September 2015: None).

c. Maturity structure of the interest eıpense on deposits:

None (30 September 2015: None).

d. Interest expense on issued marketable securities:

None (30 September 2015: None).

3. Information on dividend income:

None (30 September 2015: None).

4. İnformation on trading income/Ioss (Net):

... . -

ÇŞpenber 2C16 OSeptem ber20 15

Income 16,788 10,319

incomeIomCapitaIMarketTransucıions 17 4

Income Umm Derivative FinaneiajTransactions() 1,258 387

ForeinExchaneGains 15,513 10,028

Lo J:) ... ...,.

_flŞ2P7 —

LossfromçapitalMarketTransactions 36) (464)

Loss from Derivative Financial Transactions (*) (515) (2.295)

!gr.e n ge
.... - ... 4..] 1 (6 222).

1,521 1 681
Dee to the short maturity of derivative linancial instruments heid by the Renk, changes in exchange rate ereates gains
and Ioss [mm derivative linancial transactions.
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EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLATED HNANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

5. Information on other operating income:

Other operating income includes TL 8 per social security participant addendum, TL 54 income from
previous years’ provision cancellations and there is no income regarding extraordinary accounts. (30
September 2015: TL 58)

6. Provision expenses related to Ioans and other receivables:

.—-.-—---—------
9Şçp

Şpçç£jypnfqbpış2!PsrğysN_,
-

LÇ!£’1P and Receivab les .—--—-—

.Group Loansandkeceivables
şjpn Expen

———.—

1.210 1,573
—_______________ - —.--— -

MarketabieSecuritiesimpairmepjgp,e_
—_______________

FinancialAssetsat [qJyc Tp.ygP1ıJaş . -

Available-for-sale Financial Asseis - -

Investments in Associates, Subsidiaries and 1-leid-Lo-
.Ji4!ıt;y.i!i! Y..P - -

Investments n Associates - -

Subsidiaries - -

JointVentures - -

Other - -

Total 1.210 1,573

Information related to other operating expenses:

.

Personnelhxpcnses 5.986 4.172
ReserveForEmpioyeeTerminationBeneflts
Bank Social Aid Pension Fund Delicit Provision - -

!.TP !P£1Ş. ffç54,Aşş.çjş
—— —-——-———. -

Depreciation ExpensesoffixedAssets — 150 88
impairmentExpensesoflntangibleAssets

-

Ç3odwHimpqfrnıentcxpenses
—. -

AmortisationExpensesoflnıangibleAssets 241 96
lmpairment Expenses of Equity Participations for whic[
.tqM!%qippJj4 - - ..

lmpairmentExpcnsesofAssetsHeld For Resale —. - -________

DepreciationExpensesofAssetsHeld for Resale L,_,____________ —_______ . -

Irnpairment Expcnsesof Fixcd Assets Held for Sale

P!I?FLÇEeatiP Expenses .475
pperationalLe pşç .. L9L__...
MaintenanceExpenses

—

9
AdyertişpgExpenses

- .

ÇjŞne 143Ş
Loss on Sales of Assets . -

Other 873 2,030
Total 11.271 8,927

7.
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EXPLANATİONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FUNANCİAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

8. Information on income/(Ioss) before tax from continning or discontinued operations:

Loss before tax comes from net interest income amounting TL 22,900, net commission fee income
amounting TL 894, trading loss amounting TL 1,521, other operating income amounting TL 79,
provision for ban losses and other receivables amounting to TL 1,210 and other operating expenses
amounting TL 11,271.

9. Information on provision for taxes from continuing or discontinued operations:

As of3O September 2016 the Bank has cunent fax expense TL 2,685 TL (30 September 2015: None).
The Bank has deferred tax Ioss amounting to TL 271 (30 September 2015: TL 1,976).

As of3O September 2016, İlie Bank doesn’t have any discontinued operations.

10. İnformation on net income/(boss) from continuing or discontinued operations:

The Bank doesn’t have discontinued operations. The Bank’s net profit from continuing operations
amounting to TL 9,957 (30 September 20l5: TL 6,238).

11. Information on net income/(boss) for the period:

a. If the disclosure of ordinary banking transactions and the composition of income and
expense items is necessary to understand the annual performance of Bank, the
composition and amount of these items:

None (30 September 2015: None).

b. İf an accounting estimate change significantly affects the profitlboss in the current period
or has a probabibity to significantly affect the profit/boss in the subsequent periods, the
overali effect is discbosed:

There 15 no signiflcant change in accounting estimates which would affect the current or the
subseqııent periods.

12. Disclosure of 20% of sub-accounts in the case of other line items exceed 10% of the income
statement total.

Information related to other income and discbosure and footnotes rebated to income statement and
information related to other expenses and disebosure and footnotes related to incorne statement are
presented in footnote numbered 5 and footnote numbered 7 respectively.
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EXPLANATİONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

V. EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO STATEMENT OF CHANGES İN THE
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

1. Information on available-for-sale fınancial assets:

“Unrealized gains and losses” arising from changes in the fair value of securities ciassifled as
available-for-sale are not recognized in current year income statements; they are recognized in the
“Marketable securities value increase fund” account under equity, until the fınancial assets are sold,
disposed or impaired.

There is gam for marketable securitles valuation difference related to available-for-sale fınancial
assets ofTL 110 (31 December 2015: TL 153 loss for marketable securities valuation difference).

2. Amounts transferred to legal resen’es:

The Bank has no amounts transferred to legal reserves for current period.

3. Information on distribution of profit:

No dividend distribution has been announced after the balance sheet date.
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EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

YI. EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

1. Information on cash and cash equivalents:

Components of cash and cash equivalents and the accounting policy applied in their determination:

The effect of any ehange in the accounting policy of cunent period and the balance sheet recorded
amounts of the components that make up cash and cash equivalents (excluding rediscount balances,
reserve requirements, placements with maturity longer than 3 months and blocked accounts) are
considered as cash and cash equivalents.

a. Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period:

Cash
Cadı, Foreign Currency and Other
TC. Central Bank
Other
Cash Equivalents
Hanks
lnterbank Money Market Placements
Tahıl Cash and Cadı Eauivalents

18.252
7

18.230

22333
11,830
10,503
40,585

5,89 1
12

5,879

38,507
38,507

44398

30 September 2016 30 September 2015

Cash FIow Statements Caslı and Cash Eguivalents 23,569 39373

Blocked amounts on cash and cash equivalents
Interest income rediscounts on cash and cash eıuivalents
Cash equivalents with a maturity longer than three months
Restric(ed reserve deposits (17.016) (5,025)

2. Explanation about otber cash flows items and the effect of dhanges in foreign
on cash and cash equivalents:

exchange rates

The “Other” items presented in “Net operating income before changes in operating assets and
liabilitles” amount to TL 5,921 (30 September 2015: TL 3,592) mainly consists fees and
commissions paid and other operating expenses excluding personnel expenses.

The “Net increase/decrease in other Iiabilities” item under “Changes in operating assets and
Iiabilities” amounting to TL 4,199 (30 September 2015: TL 2,597) consists of mainiy changes in
prepaid expenses amd other assets.

The “Net increase/decrease in other Iiabilities” item under “Changes in operating assets and
Iiabilities” amounting to TL 8,165 (30 September 2015: 1,296) consists of mainly changes in
miscellaneous payables, other liabilities and taxes and other duties payable.
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EXPLANATİONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FİNANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Vİİ. EXPLANATİONS AND NOTES RELATED TO THE BANK’S RİSK GROUP

1. The volume of transactions relating to the Bank’s risk group, outstanding ban and deposit
transactions and profit and loss of the period:

a. Current Period (30 September 2016):

1 Other real and legal persons tha
Investments in Associa(es Direct and indircet shnreholder hnve heen ineluded in the risl

Bana su bsidinries and join! Y!!Y.!! .
-

Cashl Non-CnsJ Cashi Non-Cashi Cashi Non-Casi
Loans and Other
Receivah tes

Heginning of the
Period - - - 22.475 8.082 30,227
End of the Period - - — 23,55 1 - -

Interest and Commission
Income Received — - — 172 -

Prior Pedod (31 December 2015):

Other real and legal persons (ha
Investments in Associates Direct and indirect shareholden have heen ineluded in the risi

Ban Ç.ri’w çıid join Jflrc of hcBanl rouj
Cashi Non-Casi Casi Non-Casl Casi Non-Casi

Loans and Other
Receivahles

Beginning of the
Period - - - - - 4,247
End of the Period - - - 22,475 8.082 30.227

Interest and
Commission Incomc
Received - - - 98 74 40

b. Information on deposits of the Bank’s risk group:

The Bank doesn’t have any deposits since it is an investment bank.

e. Information on fonvard and option agreements and other similar agreements made with
the Bank’s risk group:

No option and fonvard aggreements with the Bank’s Risk Group. (31 December2ol5: None).

As of 30 September 2016, there is no amount for current account of risk group (31 December
2015: TL 10,213).

As of 30 September 2016, İhe Bank has borrowings from it’s risk group TL 119,054.

d. İnformation on key management compensation:

As of3O September 2016, key management compensation amount is TL 1,935 (30 September
2015: TL 975).

VİIİ. EXPLANATİONS AND NOTES RELATED TO THE DOMESTIC, FOREİGN, OFF-SHORE
BRANCHES AND FOREİGN REPRESENTATİVES OF THE BANK

None (31 December 2015: None).
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SECTION SİX

OTRER EXPLANATİONS AND NOTES

1. OTHER EXPLANATIONS RELATED TO OPERATIONS OF THE BANK

None.

İİ. EXPLANATİONS AND NOTES RELATED TO SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

According to the decision of the Board of Directors dated 21 October 2016, the Bank has completed the
sales ofbond issued with ISIN code of TRQPASH 11716, nominal value TL 37,500, 90 days maturity and
redempİion dale 24 January 2017, on 26 October 2016.

111. EXPLANATİONS ON REVIEW REPORT

The unconsolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2016 have been reviewed by
Güney Bağımsız Denetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Müşavirlik A.Ş.
(EStY) and the independent auditor’s review report dated 31 October 2016 has been presented with the
unconsolidaled fınancial statements.

İV. EXPLANATİONS AND NOTES PREPARED BY INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

None (31 December 2015: None).
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SECTION SEVEN

Expianation related for Interim financial report

Message from the Chairman

Dear Stakehoiders,

While watching the eftects of the decision taken by the UK in a referendum on leaving the Eli, the financial markets
foiiowed a positive trend in the third quarter of the year with İlie expectation that the US Central Bank FED would
not act aggressiveiy in a rate hike as a result of this development and that it would push back the increase in the
interest rate to the end of the year. The oii pdces rising to 50 dollars and over on the news that OPEC would reduce
production due the continuation of the expansionaıy poiicies by the European and Japanese Central Banks and
easing of the growth concems in China have contributed positiveiy to the developing economles that export oli.

in accordance with PASHA Bank Turkey’s strategic and operational targets, ve have completed the third quarter
of 2016 with a profit ofTL 10 miiilon. which raised up 60% by comparison with the same period of previous year.
We preserved the quaiity of our assets, expanded our credits and baiance sheet in a steady manner whiie the wise
strategies are crucial in İhis period. PASI-IA Bank has continued carning new customers and maintained its support
to the entrepreneurs and the Turkish economy in this period respecting its coşorate values and shareholders
aspirations.

The tom! amount ofcash ioans utilized to ourcustomers has become TL 370.8 miilion. while total assets has reached
TL 436.8 mililon. The tom! equities of PASHA Bank. as the primary source of funding has stood at TL 240.6
miliion. whereas borrrowings due to credit institutions reached to TL 170.4 miilion by increasing up 139% since
year-end. As a result of pnıdent credit policies pursued by our Bank, ‘ve had no non-performing loans as we had
achieved in the prior period.

During this period ve have acceiemted our activities to increase and diversif our funding sources and stepped
fonvard in line with our priority for sustainable growth so as to focused on increasing the operational efflciency.
whilst we futfılled our target for sustainable growıh in this quarier.

PASHA Bank’s determination to apply best class corporate govemance principles, its wilhngness to manage this
process dynamicaliy and continuously, and finally the progress achieved the last year has been confirmed by an
independent rating agency and our corporate governance rating is increased to 9.26 from previous rating 8.94.

We enhanced governance structure of the Bank in line with our strategic objectives. Within this framework, strategy
and budget, risk management committees have become operative to support Board for management of risk elements
and their integration into strategic planning.

Bank debuted large scaie PR activities in 2016 as another key strategic move to inerease recognition of the PASHA
Bank brand among the target audience and continued to reinforce brand awareness by panicipating to the seminars
and sponsorships after two years of its succesfui operations.
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Message from the Chairman (continned)

Despite several extemal shocks Turkey’s economic growth has shown resilience in20l5. We positively think that
the worst adversities are Ieft behind for economies of both Turkey and Azerbaijan in the last year and ve anticipate
positive sentiments for the rest of the year.

\Ve are working hard to achieve our business goals in 2016 and with an effort to expand our array of producıs and
services in line with the needs and expectations of our customers.

Our opemtions, ever inereasing coopemtion among Turkey-Azerbaijan-Georgia and the synergy among our three
banks positioned in this triangle has been reinforcing our faith to gam higher share in the trade and investment
volume increasing in our target region. 1am looking fonvard to have an operating period with positive developments
reflected in the fonhcoming quarters and towards its economic polential; the trade relations among Turkey
Azerbaijan-Georgia are enhanced and the long termjoint projects are increasingiy continued.

1 would ilke to thank our valued employees and our management team for their dedicated professional work. our
shareholders and alI business partners for their valuabie support, and our customers for their confidence in PASHA
Bank.

Sincereiy Yours,

Agha Ali Kamalov
C hal rm an
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Message of General Manager

Turkish financial markets, made a good start to the third quarter of 2016, after the failed coup attempt that arise
unexpectedly happened in mid-July followed fluctuated way. Testing of USD/ TL rate from 2.88 level to 3.10 and
then the downgrade by Moodys, despite reduce the willingness to take risks by foreign investors, as a result of
emergency measures taken by the govemment which can be administered rapidly at the end of the third quarter, the
USD/TL rate of re-decreased to a level of 2.88, and interest rates continuing the downward trend. Despite
uncertainities related with domestic resources, durable position of Turkish lira against the exchange rate and more
tlıan estimated downward trend in infiation rate (at the end of 3 quarter annual basis 7.28%), strengthen the Central
Bank of Turkey and allowed to continue reductions in interest rates, and in this quarter reduction of 125 basis points
interest lower the interest rate corridor bank to 8.25%. Although we think with the effect of domestic consumption
and public expenditure Turkey’s economy in the second quarter finalized moderate growth ratio with 3.1%, for the
passed third quarter with domestic uncertainities and increase in foreign risks there can be seen deceleration in the
growth rate.

in the beginning of fourth quarterthere are forthcoming unceriainities like geopolitical risks, the USA presidential
elections, the US Central Bank FEDs interest rate increase process, constitutional amendment. However, 1 desire
that, in the last quarter with strong capital structure and asset quality the Turkish banking sector wilI continue to
support the Turkish economy and shows a moderate growth as in the third quarter.

At the end of September, PASHA Bank has made profıt of 10 million TL 50 able to maintain our goal of sustained
profitability. Compared to beginning of the year our asset size has increased by 35% and reached TL 437 million.
Total ban size has exceed TL 371 million.ln the last quarter of the year we wilI continue to increase our client
portfolio and growth the leverage. At İhe end ofOctober we as PASHA Bank wilI issue our first TL denominated
bond both to answer demand for the profitable and trustworthy investment instrument of qualified investors and to
provide fund variety in our Bank’s financial statements.With the cost-effective resources, we wilI provide to real
sector the financial support that needs and in the coming period with the adequate market conditions ve wilI
continue to issue bonds and corroborate the trustworthy brand perception of PASHA Banks.

1 hope that especially for the banking sector the last period of 2016 wilI pass positive and grateful for alI sectors.

H. Cenk Eynehan
General Manager and Member of the Board of Directors
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A. ENTRY

1. Amendments made in Articles of Incorporation whhin the period

There is no amendment in the Articles of Incorporation within the period.

2. Signifıcant Events and Transactions within the Period

There iS 110 signiflcant clıange related to information except for the diselosures including numeric

information in financial statements included in annual activity report prepared in accordanee with

Regulation on Procedures and Principals related to Preparation and Publication ofActivity Report.

E. NON-CONSOLmATED FINANCİAL İNFORMATİON AND İST QUARTER REVIEWS

(K TL) 30 September 2016 31 December 2015

Cash assets and Central Bank 18,252 12,663

Marketable Securities in the tradebook . 604

Marketable Securities 12,230 9,619

Payables to Money market and Banks 22,333 47,357

Loans 370,798 245,744

Related Company -

Other Assets 13,220 6,418

Total Assets 436,833 322,405

Credits obtained 1 70,409 71,3 11

Payables to Money market 4,893 -

Other Liabilities 20,9 12 20,542

Paid in Capital 255,000 255,000

Profit Reserves 324 324

Marketable Securities Valuation Difference 20 (90)

Accumulated profıt / loss (24,682) (33,469)

Net Profit / Loss 9,957 8,787

Total Liabilities 436,833 322,405
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PASHA Bank 3RD QUARTER REVIEWS

The Bank has completed third quarter of 2016 with a profit number of TL 9,957 according to non.
consolidated data. Total non-consolidated assets of the Bank is TL 436,833 with a 35% increase
compared to 2015 year-end. The Bank continues its operations through headquarter units as of 30
September 2016.

The share ofour securities in balance sheet is 3%, the loans are TL 370,798 increasing ata ratio of
5 1% compared to year end of 2015 and the share of Ioans in total assets is 85%.

The capital adequacy ratio of the Bank is 59.60% as of September 30, 2016.

The bank has a strong Frnancial structure thanks to its strong capital and asset quality.

C. EXPECTATIONS OF PASHA BANK REGARDING 2016

Pasha Bank preserves it expectations included in activity report of2O 15 and anticipates an infiation
rate of 7.5-8% and an economic growth of 3.5-4% in Turkey, in 2016. The Bank also anticipates
that the ratio of current deficit to GDP wili be 4-.4.5% and unemployment rate of 10.50%.
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